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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS:

November 2005

The fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 brought about a strategic shift in the long-term growth plan for
Authentidate Holding Corp. The transformation of our content authentication business, from an
infrastructure provider to an applications and solutions-centric business, was designed to capitalize
on our pioneering role in the development and commercialization of our advanced content
authentication technology.

Over the past year, we have built a strong platform that positions us for future growth. We assembled
a new senior management team, including myself as chief executive officer effective November 2004.
This team has developed and implemented a clear strategy focused on applying our innovative
offerings to solve pressing business needs.

Our significant corporate changes allowed us to align our operations with the new direction of the
company. We are off to a promising start, having grown revenue in our core Security Software business
segment by 172% as compared to the prior fiscal year. We are confident the progress achieved during
fiscal 2005 will drive our long-term success.

As the preferred provider of the USPS EPM® branded service, we provide evidence of identity, eliminate
the possibility of altering an electronic file without detection, and maintain a digital fingerprint of a file's
content for auditing purposes. Beyond providing this service, our unique capabilities streamline many
archaic, paper-based processes, to dramatically improve overall efficiency and enhance auditability.

We believe our ability to effectively address rapidly emerging market needs presents an opportunity

to define and grow our applications business.

For the current fiscal year, our goal is to capitalize on the recent advancements in the sales and marketing
of our sophisticated solutions, while we prioritize new applications to target across key markets. We

are focusing our effort on heavily regulated industries, such as healthcare, to enable our customers to
cost-effectively manage internal controls and maintain compliance. We expect to continue to introduce
new, market-driven products and services, and expand the installed user base for our applications.

I'would like to thank our shareholders for their continued support as well as our employees for their
hard work and dedication. We are confident in our ability to realize our long-term growth prospects,
and we remain committed to building shareholder value.

Sincerely,

Suren Pai
Chief Executive Officer



SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial

Statements, including the related notes, and “Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations.”

Year Ended June 30, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
STATEMENT OF
OFPERATIONS DATA

Net Sales $ 17,553,438 $19,242,071 $ 25,286,471 $ 16,642,904 $17,860,544
Gross Profit 8,547,725 6,829,488 6,116,635 4,552,369 3,677,098
Net (Loss) / Net Income (19,184,046) (15,669,193) (9,839,309) (9,951,402) (9,340,103)
Basic and Diluted Net (Loss) /

Net Income Per Common Share (0.57) (0.59) (0.50) (0.69) (0.63)
Current Assets 66,659,498 77,993,498 7,367,295 7,320,024 13,524,429
Current Liabilities 6,653,222 5,435,456 5,443,690 5,727,588 4,004,905
Working Capital 60,006,276 72,558,042 1,923,605 1,592,436 9,519,524
Total Assets 79,708,605 94,236,876 25,045,840 26,051,986 25,867,905
Total Long Term Liabilities 693,679 83,421 (1) 5,733,500 2,379,064 2,325,168
Shareholders’ Equity 72,361,704 88,717,999 13,868,650 17,945,334 19,537,832

(1) Long-term liabilities excluding convertible debentures aggregated discount of approximately $3.1 million.
The discount pertains to beneficial conversion feature and fair value of warrants issued with debentures.

SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A

of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. When used in this
report, the words “believe,” “anticipate,” “think,” “intend,” “plan,” “will be,” “expect,”and similar
expressions identify such forward-looking statements. Such statements regarding future events and/or
our future financial performance are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual
events or our actual future results to differ materially from any forward-looking statement. Such risks
and uncertainties include among other things, the availability of any needed financing, our ability to
implement our business plan for various applications of our technologies, related decisions of the USPS,
the impact of competition, the management of growth, and other risks and uncertainties that may be
detailed from time to time in our reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. In light of
the significant risks and uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements included herein, the
inclusion of such statements should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other person that
our objectives and plans will be achieved.




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
aOF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Authentidate Holding Corp. is a holding company
which operates its software, hardware and services
business in three segments:

* The Document Management Solutions Segment,
formerly known as the Docstar™ Division. This
segment develops, assembles and sells document
imaging systems and software products.

* The Security Software Solutions Segment
(formerly known as the Authentidate Segment
and consisting of Authentidate, Trac Medical
Solutions and Authentidate International AG)
develops and sells authentication and security
software products and services.

* The System Integration Segment, formerly
known as DJS Marketing Group, which sells
and integrates computer systems, peripheral
equipment and provides professional network
and computer solution services.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, we
derived approximately $6.8 million in revenue
from our Document Management Solutions
Segment; $3.8 million from our Security Software
Solutions Segment and $7.0 million from our
Systems Integration Segment, respectively.

The Systems Integration Segment is an authorized
sales and support provider for software products
such as Microsoft Solutions and Lotus Notes.

This Segment also sells computer hardware and
provides software and integration services to
businesses to meet their data management needs,
primarily in the Albany, NY region.

The Document Management Solutions Segment
develops and sells document imaging software
nationwide and depending on the customer, may
bundle the software with computer hardware to
offer customers a turn-key solution or may sell the
software alone with no computer systems.

The Security Software Solutions Segment is
engaged in the business of providing end users
with security software technology and services
designed to accept and store a digital code which

enables users to prove the authenticity of the date,
time and the content of any electronic document.
The product was released for sale in May 2001.
We believe that product integration development
work will be necessary for some applications or
customers. In April 2005, we launched a new
service to authenticate and verify documents
received by fax.

On July 31, 2002, we entered into a strategic
alliance agreement with the United States Postal
Service to serve as the preferred provider of the
USPS Electronic Postmark® (EPM) service. Under
the terms of the agreement, our Authentidate, Inc.
subsidiary provides the management, technology
and support for the United States Postal Service's
EPM system. The USPS is the vendor of the EPM
to the end user. The USPS Electronic Postmark®
provides evidence that the content of a document
or file existed at a specific date and time and is
intended to protect the integrity of the document
or file by ensuring that it cannot be altered without
detection. The EPM uses our patent pending tech-
nology offering highly sophisticated encryption
methodology ensuring document authenticity
and is intended to be able to be added to any
application regardless of the computing platform
or operating system. During the 2005 fiscal year,
we implemented a solutions-based approach to
accelerate development of the market for the USPS
EPM and in May 2005, we announced that the
United States Postal Service approved an updated
version of the USPS EPM service.

To date, we have not achieved the revenue metrics
required under our agreement with the United
States Postal Service. As previously reported, we
received a letter from the USPS in September 2004,
which letter stated that we had six months to

cure our nonperformance of the metric standard
described in such letter. We began negotiating with
the Postal Service to complete a modification of
this metric and in December 2004 believed that we
cured the default. Despite those actions, on May
23, 2005, the United States Postal Service notified
us that we had failed to attain the performance
metrics required by the Strategic Alliance
Agreement during the period February 2005
through April 2005. In its notice, the Postal Service
has advised us that although it intends to exercise
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its right to terminate the Strategic Alliance
Agreement if we are unable to cure this default, it
is willing to discuss further plans that we may
have to attain the performance metrics in the
Strategic Alliance Agreement. We have continued
our efforts to cure the default claimed by the
USPS and to modify the Alliance Agreement.

No assurances, however, can be given that we will
be successful in completing these negotiations or
that we will comply with the current performance
metric in a timely manner. If we are unsuccessful
in either of these tasks, the Postal Service may
terminate the agreement.

Authentidate International sells the Authentidate
product in the European marketplace and is
currently focusing on the German market. As an
accredited provider, Authentidate International
is able to generate legally valid time stamps in
accordance with the German Digital Signature
Act and European guidelines. Authentidate
International develops and provides software
solutions for electronic invoicing, secure e-mail,
archiving, scarming, time stamping and
workflow solutions.

Trac Medical Solutions developed a business
model to apply the Authentidate technology to the
medical supply business relating to the automation
and processing of CMNs. Trac Medical Solutions
developed its CareCert™ service and has entered
into over thirty revenue generating agreements to
date. In February 2004, Trac Medical Solutions
entered into an agreement with Homecare
Association, LLC pursuant to which Trac Medical
Solutions markets its CareCert service directly to
the membership community of the American
Association for Homecare. In connection with that
agreement, Trac Medical Solutions engaged
bConnected Software, Inc. to provide development
services for an enterprise version of its CareCert
service and to provide marketing and reselling
services. Trac Medical announced the commercial
release of CareCert® ES during the quarter ended
December 31, 2004. Trac Medical Solutions gener-
ates revenues through license fees, maintenance
fees, support fees and the sale of transactions.

We have recently undergone significant changes
in senior management, with the appointment of a
new Chief Executive Officer and Executive Vice
President — Chief Administrative Officer during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. On January 20,
2005, our shareholders elected two new members
to the Board of Directors. We are continuing to
address the challenges of the markets in which
the Security Software Solutions Segment operates,
while continuing to grow the established business-
es, the Document Management Solutions Segment
and the Systems Integration Segment.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements and accompanying
notes are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements include the accounts of
Authentidate Holding Corp. and its subsidiaries.
Intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated. Equity investments where we do not
exercise significant influence over the investee are
accounted for under the cost method.

Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid debt instruments
with maturities not exceeding three months when
purchased to be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2005
and 2004, cash equivalents were composed
primarily of investments in high quality short
term investments such as commercial paper

and overnight interest bearing deposits.

Marketable Securities

Our marketable securities are generally comprised
of auction rate securities. These investments are
generally rated AAA or AA by one or more nation-
al rating agencies. The auction rate securities have
contractual maturities of up to 30 years. The auc-
tion rate securities that we invest in generally have
interest re-set dates that occur every 7 and 28 days
and despite the long-term nature of their stated
contractual maturity, we have the ability to quickly
liquidate these securities at ongoing auctions every




28 days or less. We classify our investments in
auction rate securities as “available for sale.”
These investments are recorded at cost which
approximates fair market value due to their
variable interest rates, which typically reset every
7 or 28 days. As a result, we had no cumulative
gross unrealized holding gains (losses) or gross
realized gains (losses) from our current invest-
ments. All income generated from these current
investments was recorded as interest income.
Because we do not hold any one auction rate
security longer than one year, they have been
classified as a current asset.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable represents receivables net of
allowances for doubtful accounts. The allowance
for doubtful accounts reflects our best estimate of
probable losses inherent in the accounts receivable
balance. We determine the allowance based on
known troubled accounts, historical experience
and other currently available evidence.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market and are valued at average cost.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets including property and
equipment, software development costs, patent
costs, trademarks and licenses are reviewed for
impairment whenever events such as significant
changes in the business climate, changes in
product offerings, or other circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment (including assets

held under capital leases) are stated at cost.
Depreciation and amortization are determined
using the straight-line method. Estimated useful
lives of the assets range from three to forty years.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense
as incurred. Renewals and betterments are capital-
ized. When assets are sold, retired or otherwise
disposed of, the applicable costs and accumulated
depreciation or amortization are removed from
the accounts and the resulting gain or loss, if any,
is recognized.

Software Development Costs

Software development and modification costs
incurred subsequent to establishing technological
feasibility are capitalized and amortized based on
anticipated revenue for the related product with
an annual minimum equal to the straight-line
amortization over the remaining economic life

of the related products (generally three years).
These expenses are included in cost of sales.

Goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually

or whenever events such as significant changes in
the business climate, changes in product offerings,
or other circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. We perform our
annual goodwill impairment test in the fourth
quarter of each fiscal year.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to
be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that includes
the enactment date.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized
when persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exists, delivery has occurred, the selling price is
fixed and collectibility is reasonably assured.
Service revenue is recognized as services are
provided. We enter into transactions that represent
multiple-element arrangements. These arrange-
ments may include combinations of software
licensing, post-contract customer support, software
upgrades, transactions, set-up fees, hosting fees
and credentialing fees. Multiple-element arrange-
ments are assessed to determine whether they can
be separated into more than one unit of account-
ing. A multiple-element arrangement is separated
into more than one unit of accounting if all of the
following criteria are met: the delivered item has
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value to the customer on a stand alone basis; there
is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value
of the undelivered items in the arrangement; and
if the arrangement includes a general right of
return relative to the delivered items, delivery or
performance of the undelivered item is considered
probable and substantially in our control. If these
criteria are not met, then revenue is deferred until
such criteria are met or until the period over which
the last undelivered element is delivered, which

is typically the life of the contract agreement.

If these criteria are met, we allocate total revenue
among the elements based on the sales price of
each element when sold separately or based on
fair value of each element if they are not sold
separately, which is referred to as vendor specific
objective evidence or VSOE.

Our Document Solutions Segment has significant
revenue from multiple element arrangements.
Docstar sales include computer systems with
loaded software (including the perpetual software
license) as one deliverable and Docstar Softcare™
as an additional deliverable. Each of these deliver-
ables are separately sold products and therefore
have vendor specific objective evidence of fair
value. In some cases the deliverable is just the
software and license with no computer. Docstar
Softcare is a one year post-contract customer
support and upgrade product. We recognize
revenue on the system and perpetual software
license when the product is shipped and title to
the system passes to the customer. The Softcare
deliverable is considered a when-and-if-available
element. Softcare revenue is recognized ratably
over the one year contract. Revenue is allocated
to each element based on the prices of these two
elements when sold separately.

The System Integration Segment revenue is mainly
derived from the sale of computer hardware and
does not generally involve multiple elements.
Revenue is recognized when the hardware is
shipped and title passes to the customer. This
segment also has professional services revenue
and this revenue is recognized when the services
are completed and accepted by the customer.

In some cases this segment may have a multiple
element transaction when professional services
and hardware are both sold to the customer.

The hardware revenue is recognized when it is
shipped to the customer and the professional
services portion is recognized when the services
are completed and accepted by the customer.
Revenue for each element is allocated based on
the sales price we charge for these elements when
sold separately (VSOE).

The Security Software Solutions Segment may
have multiple element sales and the separate
elements may include licensing, maintenance, set-
up, support, transaction fees and hosting services.
Our Trac Medical subsidiary generally enters into
sales contracts of one year. These contracts, which
require customer set-up, may contain elements
including software hosting, licensing, credential-
ing, transaction and postcontract customer support
elements. Additionally, these contracts contain a
prepaid transaction element and any unused
transactions may be carried over, provided the
customer renews the contract for another year.

As this service/product is new, there is no evi-
dence of value for any element, VSOE has not
been established. Additionally, under these
arrangements, all elements of the contract are
being provided and/or accessed by the customer
over our hosting site on a monthly basis over the
estimated term of the contract. Therefore, revenue
is deferred until set-up is complete and then
recognized ratably over the estimated term of

the contract.

With regard to our Authentidate Inc. product, the
Electronic Post Mark (EPM), revenue is recognized
on the sale of EPMs to the USPS as EPMs are used
by the end-user customer. With regard to our
Authentidate AG subsidiary, some revenue con-
tracts may involve multiple element arrangements
and because the elements cannot be separated into
more than one unit of accounting, the revenue is
deferred and recognized ratably over the life of the
contract, which is generally one year. The multiple
elements may include license fees, support fees,
professional services, time stamp fees and mainte-
nance fees. Authentidate AG may also receive
revenue from professional services (without other
elements) and such revenue is recognized as the
professional services are completed and accepted
by the customer.




Warranty Provisions

We provide a one-year warranty on hardware
products assembled in the Document Management
Solutions Segment. On products distributed for
other manufacturers, the original manufacturer
warranties the product. Warranty expense was not
significant to any of the years presented.

Advertising Expenses

We recognize advertising expenses as incurred.

Product Development Expenses

These costs represent research and development
expense and include salary and benefits,
professional and consultant fees, amortization
of licenses and supplies.

Currency Translation Adjustment

Assets and liabilities of non-U.S. operations are
translated at the exchange rate on the balance
sheet date generally and the income statements
are translated at the average rates of exchange for
the year. Gains or losses resulting from translating
non-U.S. currency financial statements are
recorded in “Comprehensive Income (Loss)” and
accumulated in shareholders’ equity in the caption
“Accumulated Comprehensive Income (Loss)”

Estimates and Assumptions

Preparing financial statements requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses. Examples include estimates
of loss contingencies and product life cycles and
assumptions such as elements comprising a
software arrangement, including the distinction
between upgrades/enhancements and new
products; when technological feasibility is achieved
for our products; the potential outcome of future
tax consequences; and determining when invest-
ment impairments are other-than-temporary.
Actual results and outcomes may differ from
management's estimates and assumptions.

We have based our estimates on historical
experience and on various assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances
and we evaluate our estimates on a regular basis
and make changes accordingly. Historically,

our estimates relative to our critical accounting
estimates have not differed materially from actual
results; however, actual results may differ from
these estimates under different conditions. If
actual results differ from these estimates and
other considerations used in estimating amounts
reflected in our consolidated financial statements,
the resulting changes could have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated statement of
income, and in certain situations, could have a
material adverse effect on liquidity and our
financial condition.

With regard to revenue recognition, revenue from
the sale of products is recognized when persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred, the selling price is fixed and collectibility
is reasonably assured. Service revenue is recog-
nized as such services are provided. We enter into
transactions that represent multiple-element
arrangements. Those arrangements include
combinations of licensing, transactions, set-up,
maintenance, support and hosting services.
Multiple-element transactions are assessed to
determine whether they can be separated into
more than one unit of accounting. A multiple-
element arrangement is separated into more than
one unit of accounting if all of the following
criteria are met (a) the delivered item has value

to the customer on a stand alone basis; (b) there

is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value
of the undelivered item; and (c) if the arrangement
includes a general right of return relative to the
delivered item, delivery or performance of the
delivered item is considered probable and substan-
tially within our control. If these criteria are not
met, then revenue is deferred until such criteria
are met or until the period over which the last
undelivered element is delivered, which is
typically the life of the contract agreement.

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts

for estimated losses resulting from the inability

of our customers to make required payments.

We write down inventory for estimated obsoles-
cence or unmarketable inventory equal to the
difference between the cost of the inventory and
the estimated market value based on assumptions
about future demand and market conditions.

We make estimates on the future recoverability of
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capitalized goodwill in the Security Software
Solutions Segment, which is highly dependent on
the future success of the marketing and sales of
this segment. We record a valuation allowance
against deferred tax assets when we believe it is
more likely than not that such deferred tax assets
will not be realized.

Stock-Based Compensation

We apply Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25 (APB No. 25) in accounting for our stock
option plans and, accordingly, no compensation
cost has been recognized in our financial state-
ments for stock options under any of the stock
plans which on the date of grant the exercise price
per share was equal to or exceeded the fair value
per share. However, compensation cost has been
recognized for warrants granted to non-employees
for services provided.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject us to
concentrations of credit risk consist of cash and
cash equivalents, marketable securities and trade
accounts receivable. To reduce credit risk, we place
our investments with several high credit quality
financial institutions and typically invest in AA

or better rated investments. Our credit customers
are not concentrated in any specific industry or
business. We establish an allowance for doubtful
accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit
risk of specific customers, historical trends and
other information.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Fiscal Year 2005 Compared to Fiscal Year 2004

We realized a consolidated net loss of approxi-
mately $19.2 million ($.57 per share) and $15.7
million (3.59 per share) for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

As reported in Footnote 18 (Segment Information)
to the Consolidated Financial Statements appear-
ing in this Annual Report, the net loss is the result
of losses incurred primarily by the Security
Software Solutions Segment. Our Security Software
Solutions Segment has incurred significant sales,

marketing, development and general and adminis-
trative expenses this year and last in an effort to
complete the product development efforts, to
generate sales, and to develop a market for its
products. Additionally, we incurred consulting
costs related to the documentation and testing of
the internal control environment as required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The consolidated net loss for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005 is approximately $3.5 million higher
than fiscal year 2004. There was an increase in the
loss in the Security Software Solutions Segment of
approximately $3.4 million comparing fiscal year
2005 to fiscal year 2004 (Note 18). The increase was
primarily due to increased personnel costs ($1.8
million), consulting expense ($2.0 million) and
long-lived asset impairment charges of approxi-
mately $500,000 in the current year, offset by
additional gross profit from increases in sales.

The Document Solutions Segment profit decreased
approximately $70,000, primarily due to increased
selling, general and administrative expenses, offset
for the most part by an increase in sales and result-
ing gross profit. The Systems Integration Segment
profit decreased approximately $303,000 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, compared to fiscal
year ended June 30, 2004 due to a decrease in sales
and also due to facility closing and moving
expenses of approximately $162,000. We had
approximately $5.1 million in non-cash interest
expense related to conversions of debentures

(see Note 19) during fiscal year 2004 {corporate
expenses); we had no such expense in fiscal year
2005. The Corporate Division incurred new
severance costs of $1.4 million, while incurring
minor severance expenses in the prior year.

The Corporate Division also incurred goodwill
impairment charges of $4.3 million related to the
Security Software Solutions Segment in fiscal year
2005 versus $1.2 million in the prior year related to
the Systems Integration Segment.

Consolidated net sales were approximately $17.6
million and $19.2 million for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The decrease
versus the prior year is the result of a decrease in
the Systems Integration Segment of $4.6 million,
mainly as a result of a onetime large sale of $3.0
million in 2004 which did not occur again in 2005.




The sales decline in the Systems Integration
Segment was offset by an increase in Security
Software Solutions Segment sales of approximately
$2.4 million comparing current year to prior year.
Sales for the Document Management Solutions
Segment increased approximately $521,000
comparing current year to prior year.

Consolidated gross profit for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2005 and 2004 was $8.5 million and $6.8
million, respectively. The increase is primarily due
to the increase in gross profit in the Security
Software Segment of approximately $1.7 million,
which is a result of the aforementioned sales
increase on a year over year basis. The Document
Solutions Segment also had an increase in gross
profit of about $441,000, while Systems Integration
had a decline of approximately $414,000.

The consolidated gross profit margin was 48.7%
and 35.5% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2005
and 2004, respectively. Gross profit margin is
defined as gross profit as a percentage of sales.
The increase comparing current year to prior year
is a result of increased gross profit in the Security
Software Solutions Segment and the Systems
Integration Segment. The Document Solutions
Segment also benefited from a minor gross

profit increase.

Selling, general and administrative expenses
(S,G&A) consist of all other of our expenses except
product development costs, goodwill impairment
and interest. 5,G&A expenses amounted to $21.5
million and $14.0 million for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The largest
increase was in the Security Software Solutions
Segment which incurred increased personnel costs
($1.8 million), along with additional consulting
costs ($2.0 million) comparing fiscal year 2005 to
2004. The Corporate Division also had new sever-
ance costs of $1.4 million during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2005.

As a percentage of net sales, 5,G&A costs were
122.4% and 72.9% for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. This percentage
increase is primarily due to the increase in S,G&A
expenses for the Security Software Solutions
Segment as discussed above.

Impairment of goodwill and other long-lived
assets was approximately $4.8 million and $1.2
million for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. We completed our annual impairment
test in the fourth quarter of 2005, using a discount-
ed cash flow model for all reporting units, and
determined that a write-off of goodwill and other
long-lived assets of $4.8 million was required.

The impairment charge resulted from our analysis
that sales and income growth during the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2005 was not as great as originally
anticipated, thus reducing expectations of growth
for the next year compared to similar analysis
conducted in the past. With regard to the $4.8
million impairment charge, $4.3 million was in

the Corporate Division and related to the Security
Software Solution Segment. The remaining balance
of approximately $500,000 was an impairment
charge in the Security Software Solutions Segment
relating to its long-lived assets. For the year ended
June 30, 2004, the tests determined that a write-off
of goodwill of $1.2 million was required in the
Corporate Division related to the Systems
Integration Segment. The impairment charge for
the Systems Integration Segment was required

due to the slow-down in the technology sector
growth causing the Systems Integration

Segment's 2004 operating results to fall short

of management's expectations.

Interest expense was approximately $16,000 and
$6.2 million for the years ended June 30, 2005 and
2004, respectively. The decrease is due to non-cash
interest expense on convertible debentures which
were written off due to conversion to common
stock which occurred in fiscal 2004, which is more
fully discussed in the footnotes contained herein
and due to interest expense from the building
mortgage which was paid off in the third quarter
of fiscal 2004.

Product development expenses, excluding capital-
ized costs, primarily relate to software develop-
ment for the Security Software Solutions Segment.
These costs increased to $3.1 million in 2005, as

‘compared to $2.4 million in 2004. We have a policy

of capitalizing qualified software development
costs after technical feasibility has been established
and amortizing those costs over three years as

cost of goods sold. The amortization expense of
software development costs amounted to approxi-



10

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CAONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

mately $402,000 and $291,000 for the years ended
June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, interest
and other income increased to approximately
$1,678,000 as compared to $1,304,000 for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2004. The $374,000 increase
was due to an increase in interest income on mar-
ketable securities and cash and cash equivalents of
$1.1 million. In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004,
we recognized approximately $732,000 in non-cash
grant income, while no grant income was recog-
nized in fiscal 2005.

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year 2003

We realized a consolidated net loss of $15.7 million
($.59 per share) and $9.8 million ($.50 per share)
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

As reported in Footnote 18 (Segment Information)
to the Consolidated Financial Statements appear-
ing in this Annual Report, the net loss is the result
of losses incurred primarily by our Security
Software Solutions Segment and from corporate
expenses, primarily interest expense. Our Security
Software Solutions Segment has incurred signifi-
cant sales, marketing, development and general
administrative expenses in 2004 and 2003 in an
effort to complete the product development efforts
and generate sales.

Our consolidated net loss is $5.8 million more in
2004 as compared to 2003. The Document Solutions
Segment reported an increase in profit from
$797,000 in 2003 to $848,000 in 2004 and the
Systems Integration Segment realized an increase
in profit from $147,000 in 2003 to $265,000 in 2004.
The Security Software Solutions Segment, which
includes Authentidate, Authentidate International
and Trac Medical Solutions, reported a decrease in
segment losses from $6.0 million in 2003 to $5.6
million in 2004.

Consolidated net sales were $19.2 million and $25.3
million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2004 and
2003, respectively. As reported in Footnote 18 to
our Consolidated Financial Statements, most of the
decrease is due to a decrease in sales realized by
the Systems Integration Segment. The decrease in

the Systems Integration Segment's sales from $17.1
million to $11.6 million was primarily the result

of a decrease in low-margin direct hardware sales
this year compared to last year. One customer
represented approximately 36% of the Systems
Integration Segment's net sales for fiscal 2004.
Sales also increased in the Security Software
Solutions Segment for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2004 by $4,000. The Document Solutions
Segment sales decreased $507,000 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2004 as compared to 2003 due to
the fact that the Document Solutions Segment had
fewer system sales but more software sales, which
have a lower average selling price.

Consolidated gross profit for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2004 and 2003 was $6.8 million and $6.1
million, respectively. This increase is due primarily
to the decrease in the cost of sales experienced by
the Document Solutions Segment.

Our consolidated gross profit margin was 35.5%
and 24.2% for the years ended June 30, 2004 and
2003, respectively. The Systems Integration
Segment realized an increase in profit margins
compared to last year due to the decrease in direct
hardware sales, discussed above, as we sold fewer
low margin computers and peripheral devices.
The Systems Integration Segment realized a gross
profit margin of 15.8% in 2004 compared to 11.8%
in 2003. There was also an increase in gross profit
margins for the Document Solutions Segment
during the 2004 fiscal year. The Document Solution
Segment's gross profit margin increased from
64.2% to 72.8% from 2003 to 2004. This increase is
due to reduced direct material costs due to better
purchasing and a general reduction in component
parts throughout the computer industry and
reduction in direct labor because of a strategic
shift in the business away from hardware and
into software-only sales. The Security Software
Solutions Segment realized a gross profit of
$410,000 in 2004 compared to a gross loss of
$270,000 in 2003 due to an increase in sales at
Authentidate International. Gross profit margin is
defined as gross profit as a percentage of sales.

Selling, general and administrative expenses
(S,G&A) consist of all our other expenses except
product development costs and interest. 5,G&A
expenses amounted to $14.0 million and $12.6




million for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. This increase in 5,G&A expenses is
primarily the result of increased selling costs in the
Security Software Solutions Segment, including
personnel and advertising,.

As a percentage of sales, 5G&A costs were 72.9%
and 49.8% for the years ended June 30, 2004 and
2003, respectively. This percentage increase is
primarily due to the increase in selling costs,
discussed above.

Product development expenses, excluding
capitalized costs, primarily relate to software
development for the Security Software Solutions
Segment. These costs were $2.4 million and $2.5
million for the years ended June 30, 2004 and
2003, respectively. We have a policy of capitalizing
qualified software development costs after techni-
cal feasibility has been established and amortizing
those costs over three years as cost of sales. The
amortization expense of software development
costs amounted to approximately $291,000 and $1.1
million for each of the years ended June 30, 2004
and 2003, respectively.

Goodwill impairment was $1.2 million and $0

for the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. We completed our annual impair-
ment test in the fourth quarter of 2004, using a
discounted cash flow model for all reporting
units, and determined that a write-off of goodwill
of $1.2 million was required in the Corporate
Division related to the Systems Integration
Segment. The Systems Integration Segment
goodwill write-off was required due to the growth
slow-down in the technology sector causing the
Systems Integration Segment's 2004 operating
results to fall short of management's expectations.
As a result, we reduced the Systems Integration
Segment's cash flow and operating results forecast
for future periods.

Interest expense was $6.2 million and $872,000 for
the years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, respective-
ly. The increase is primarily due to the non-cash

of unamortized beneficial conversion feature,
unamortized debt discount and unamortized
deferred financing costs aggregating $5.6 million
due to the conversion of an aggregate principal
amount of $8,895,300 of convertible debentures to

common stock, which is more fully explained

in the footnotes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Prior to such conversion, we recog-
nized approximately $300,000 as amortization
expense for the year ended June 30, 2004. In
addition, we were required to pay interest on

the convertible debentures in the amount of 7%
per annum which resulted in interest expense of
approximately $170,000 for the year ended June 30,
2004. Finally, we incurred minor additional interest
expense during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003
as a result of new equipment and software leases
entered into by the Security Software Solutions
Segment and by the Systems Integration Segment
from borrowings on its line of credit.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, interest
and other income increased to $1.3 million as
compared to $573,000 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003. This $732,000 increase was primarily
due to the non-cash grant income of $732,000 and
an increase in interest income of approximately
$450,000 earned on cash and cash equivalents. In
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, we recognized
approximately $438,000 in other income related to
the September 11, 2001 attack in New York City.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Overview

Our primary sources of funds to date have been
the issuance of equity and the incurrence of third
party debt. The principal balance of long-term debt
at June 30, 2005 totaled $292,000, which relates to
severance due to a former employee, rent payable
on a discontinued facility beyond one year for the
DJS subsidiary and a note payable to the Empire
State Development Corporation for the repayment
of a grant, as more fully described below.

In February 2004, we sold a total of 5,360,370
common shares in private placements pursuant

to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506,
promulgated there. We realized gross proceeds

of approximately $73.7 million from these transac-
tions and received net proceeds of approximately
$69.1 million after payment of offering expenses
and broker commissions.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUsSsiON AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Our DJS subsidiary has a $2.5 million revolving
line of credit with a financial institution collateral-
ized by all assets of DJS and guaranteed by
Authentidate Holding Corp. The agreement
restricts DJS from making cash advances to AHC,
without obtaining a waiver from the financial
institution. The interest rate is prime plus 1.75%
with a minimum prime rate of 7%. DJS may
borrow on this line based on a formula of qualified
accounts receivable and inventory. The outstanding
balance on this line of credit is approximately
$430,000 at June 30, 2005.

Property, plant and equipment expenditures
totaled approximately $1.3 million, capitalized
software development expenditures totaled
$529,000, and other intangible assets expenditures
totaled $362,000 for the year ended June 30, 2005,
respectively. There are no significant purchase
commitments outstanding at June 30, 2005.

In June 1999, we completed construction of a

new office and production facility in Schenectady,
New York for approximately $2,300,000, which was
financed with a $1,000,000 grant from the Empire
State Development Corporation (ESDC) (an agency
of New York state) and a mortgage loan from a
local financial institution. The grant stipulated that
the Company was obligated to achieve certain
annual employment levels between January 1, 2002
and January 1, 2004, or some or all of the grant will
have to be repaid. Although we did not achieve
the agreed upon employment levels, we reached
an agreement with the ESDC in fiscal 2004 to
restructure the grant terms relating to this
covenant. We agreed to repay $268,000 of the grant
amount at the rate of $10,000 per month, interest
free, in consideration of the ESDC's agreement to
permanently reduce our employment level require-
ment to 99. At June 30, 2005 the amount due ESDC
was $48,000 and is included in debt on the balance
sheet. As a result of this arrangement, we recorded
$732,000 as other income in the Corporate Division
during fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.

Cash Flows

Our unrestricted cash and cash equivalents balance
at June 30, 2005 was $6.4 million and total assets
were $79.7 million compared to cash and cash
equivalents of $25.1 million and total assets of

$94.2 million at June 30, 2004. We invested the
excess cash in marketable securities, which totaled
$56.1 million at June 30, 2005 and $48.9 million at
June 30, 2004. The increase in the amount invested
in marketable securities is primarily due to our
desire to improve the yields received on excess
cash as marketable securities, mostly auction rate
securities, generally yield a higher rate of return
than cash equivalents such as money market funds
and certificates of deposit. We used $10.6 million of
cash in Operating Activities during the year ended
June 30, 2005 (fiscal 2005). This compares to cash
used in Operating Activities of $6.7 million for the
year ended June 30, 2004 (fiscal 2004). Total cash
flow used by all activities was $18.6 million for
fiscal 2005, compared to net cash provided of $21.6
million for fiscal 2004. This decrease in cash and
cash equivalents during the year is primarily due
to the fact that we received $69.6 million from
proceeds from a private equity offering and $2.4
million from the sale of convertible debentures in
fiscal 2004. In addition, we incurred a larger net
loss in fiscal 2005 ($19.2 million) than in fiscal 2004
($15.7 million). In the Corporate Division, goodwill
impairment expense increased to $4.3 million in
2005 (all of which was related to the Security
Software Solutions Segment) versus $1.2 million

in 2004 (all of which was related to the Systems
Integration Segment) as a result of our fourth quar-
ter analysis in each respective year. In addition, we
incurred an impairment charge of approximately
$500,000 on long-lived assets in the Security
Software Solutions Segment in fiscal 2005. With
regard to Cash Flow from Investing Activities,

our investing outflows for property, plant and
equipment was approximately $1.0 million greater
in fiscal 2005 than in fiscal 2004. We also invested
$750,000 in an unaffiliated third party, Health
Fusion, Inc., in connection with a strategic relation-
ship we established with this company. We will
invest an additional $750,000 in Health Fusion,
provided it achieves certain financial and other
performance objectives. This was offset by a
reduction in the purchase of marketable securities
from $48.9 million in fiscal 2004 compared to

$7.2 million in fiscal 2005. With regard to Cash
Flow from Financing Activities, as previously
mentioned, we closed on a private equity offering
($69.6 million) and the sale of convertible notes
($2.4 million) in fiscal 2004. We also received $9.1



million from the exercise of common stock options
and warrants in fiscal 2004 compared to $2.2
million in fiscal 2005.

To date we have been largely dependent on our
ability to sell additional shares of our common
stock or other securities to obtain financing to fund
our operating deficits. Under our current operating
plan to introduce our Security Software Solutions,
our ability to improve operating cash flow has
been highly dependent on the market acceptance
of our products. We believe we have enough

cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities

to support our operations for at least the next
twelve months.

Our future capital requirements may vary
materially from those now planned. The amount
of capital that we will need in the future will
depend on many factors, including:

* our relationships with suppliers
and customers;
the market acceptance of our products;
» the levels of promotion and advertising that
will be required to launch our new products
and achieve and maintain a competitive
position in the marketplace;
price discounts on our products
to our customers;
* our pursuit of strategic transactions;
our business, product, capital expenditure and
research and development plans and product
and technology road maps;
the levels of inventory and accounts receivable
that we maintain;
* capital improvements to new and

existing facilities;
» technological advances; and
® our competitors’ response to our products.

Financing Activities

We did not engage in any financing activities
during the 2005 fiscal year. During the 2004
fiscal year, we completed the private financings
described below in order to address our working
capital needs.

On September 12, 2003, we completed the sale of
$2,470,000 of our securities to certain accredited

investors pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, and Regulation D, prom-
ulgated thereunder. We received net proceeds

- of approximately $2,300,000, after paying all fees

and expenses. We have applied these proceeds to
working capital and general corporate purposes.
In the transaction, we sold $2,470,000 of convertible
debentures to the investors and warrants to pur-
chase an aggregate of 247,000 shares of common
stock. The debentures were convertible into shares
of our common stock at an initial conversion price
of $3.00 per share and the warrants are exercisable
into shares of common stock at an initial price of
$3.00 per share. The other terms and conditions of
the debentures and warrants are the same as set
forth in the debentures and warrants issued in the
first tranche of this transaction in October 2002.

As discussed below, the convertible debentures
issued in this transaction were converted into
shares of common stock during the fiscal quarter
ended December 31, 2003. We alsc issued warrants
to purchase an aggregate of 49,400 shares of
common stock to certain consultants for services
rendered in connection with this transaction, which
are exercisable at $3.00 per share. The consultants
also received a cash fee equal to 6% of the gross
proceeds we received.

Further, on September 22, 2003, we completed

the sale of 166,667 shares of common stock to an
additional accredited investor pursuant to Section
4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,

and Regulation D, promulgated thereunder for
$500,000. We have applied these proceeds to
working capital and general corporate purposes.
In addition, we issued warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 50,000 shares of common stock to the
investor in this transaction. The per share purchase
price of the common stock and the per share
exercise price of the warrants is $3.00. The investor
also agreed to a twelve-month “lock-up” provision
restricting the resale of the securities, which
expired in September 2004. We also issued war-
rants to purchase an aggregate of 10,000 shares

of our common stock to a consultant for services
rendered in connection with this transaction which
are exercisable at $3.00 per share. The consultants
also received a cash fee equal to 6% of the gross
proceeds we received.
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In February 2004, we completed private offerings
of our common stock to certain accredited
investors pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended and Regulation D,
promulgated thereunder. We sold a total of
5,360,370 common shares at a price of $13.75 per
share and realized gross proceeds of $73.7 million.
After payment of offering expenses and broker
commissions, we realized approximately $69.1
million in net proceeds. We are applying the
proceeds to strengthen our balance sheet and
develop a back-up data center for Authentidate
Inc. as well as for sales and marketing activities
and general corporate purposes.

During the 2003 fiscal year, we consummated
various private placements pursuant to Rule 4(2)
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and/or
Rule 506 promulgated thereunder to address our
cash needs, as described below.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2002,
we sold an aggregate of 660,077 units of our
securities, each unit comprised of one share of
common stock and one warrant to purchase .20
shares of common stock. The securities were
offered at a purchase price of $3.03 per unit and
the warrants are exercisable at $3.26 per share for
a period of five years from the date of issuance.
We received an aggregate of approximately
$1,955,000 in net proceeds after payment of
expenses. The proceeds were used to fund
business development, marketing and sales
efforts and general working capital needs.

In October 2002, we sold convertible debentures
with a face value of $3,700,000 to institutional
investors and warrants to purchase 444,000 shares
of common stock. The debentures were convertible
into shares of our common stock at an initial con-
version price of $2.50 per share, were due three
years from the date of issuance and accrued inter-
est at the rate of 7% per annum. The warrants are
exercisable for a period of four years and are ini-
tially exercisable at $2.50 per share. As discussed
below, the convertible debentures issued in this
transaction were converted into shares of common
stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2003.
The investors in this transaction granted us the
option to sell another $2,470,000 of convertible

debentures to the same investors provided that
our common stock maintains a trading price at or
above $3.00 per share for the 15 trading days pre-
ceding the election to sell additional debentures.
As described above, we exercised this right in
September 2003. We also issued an aggregate

of 86,863 warrants to consultants for services
rendered in connection with this transaction

and paid them a total cash fee of $222,000. The
warrants issued to the consultants are exercisable
at $2.50 per share and are on terms substantially
similar to the warrants issued to the investors.

In May 2003, we completed a similar sale of con-
vertible debentures in the amount of $2,725,300
and warrants to purchase 419,279 shares of com-
mon stock to certain institutional and accredited
investors. The debentures are convertible into
shares of our common stock at an initial conver-
sion price of $2.60 per share and are otherwise on
the same terms as the debentures issued in October
2002. The warrants are exercisable for a period of
five years and 50% of the warrants are initially
exercisable at $2.60 per share and the remainder is
initially exercisable at $2.86 per share. As described
below, the convertible debentures issued in this
transaction were converted into shares of common
stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2003.
Mr. J. David Luce, who is a non-executive member
of our board of directors and J&C Resources, LLC,
an entity affiliated with Mr. Charles C. Johnston,
also a non-executive member of our board, partici-
pated in this financing and each purchased
$250,000 aggregate principal amount of convertible
debentures and received 38,462 common stock
purchase warrants. We also issued an aggregate

of 36,923 warrants to consultants for services
rendered in connection with this transaction,

of which 50% are exercisable at $2.60 per share
and 50% are exercisable at $2.86 per share. The
consultants also received a cash fee of $96,000.
These warrants are on terms substantially similar
to the warrants issued to the investors.

The securities sold in each of the foregoing transac-
tions were restricted securities under the terms

of Regulation D and may not be transferred or
resold for a period of one year, except pursuant

to registration under the Securities Act or an
exemption thereunder. Pursuant to registration



rights agreements entered into with the investors
in these financings, registration statements were
filed with and declared effective by the Securities
and Exchange Commission, registering the shares
of common stock sold in or issuable pursuant to
these transactions.

Other Matters

The events and contingencies described below
have or may have impacted our liquidity and
capital resources.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2003,

we exercised our right to require the holders of
an aggregate amount of $8,895,300 of convertible
debentures to convert the entire outstanding
principal amount of their debentures into shares
of our common stock. The conversion of these
debentures has resulted in our issuance of an
aggregate amount of 3,351,527 shares of our
common stock to the holders of the debentures.
The specific debentures subject to this conversion
requirement are an aggregate principal amount
of $3,700,000 of convertible debentures issued in
October 2002, an aggregate principal amount of
$2,725,300 of convertible debentures issued in
May 2003 and an aggregate principal amount

of $2,470,000 ot convertible debentures issued in
September 2003. We expensed the debt discount as
interest expense related to these debenture issues
during the quarter ended December 31, 2003.
During the year ended June 30, 2004 and prior to
the conversions, we recognized approximately
$300,000 of amortization expense related to the
beneficial conversion feature and debt discount.
During the year ended June 30, 2004, upon
conversion, we expensed the entire balance of
unamortized beneficial conversion feature and
debt discount and charged approximately $5.1
million to interest expense, all of which is a non
cash interest charge. In addition, we expensed all
unamortized deferred financing costs related to
these three debenture issues during the year ended
June 30, 2004, in the amount of approximately
$500,000 as interest expense. We will save approxi-
mately $623,000 in interest payments annually as
a result of these conversions.

Presently, 28,000 shares of our Series B preferred
stock, originally issued in a private financing in

October 1999, remain outstanding. As of October 1,
2004, our right to redeem the outstanding 28,000
shares of Series B preferred stock is vested.
Accordingly, we have the right to repurchase such
shares at a redemption price equal to $25.00 per
share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The
holder, however, has the right to convert these
shares of preferred stock into an aggregate of
500,000 shares of our common stock at a conver-
sion rate of $1.40. In the event we elect to redeem
these securities, the holder will be able to exercise
its conversion right subsequent to the date that we
issue a notice of redemption but prior to the
deemed redemption date as would be set forth in
such notice. As of June 30, 2005, no shares of the
Series B preferred stock have been redeemed.

In April 2003, our audit committee approved our
plan to repurchase the shares of Series A preferred
stock from our former Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer for a total price of $850,000.

This price was at a discount from the appraised
value of the shares of Series A preferred stock of
$1.1 million, as determined by an independent
appraisal and valuation firm. The purchase was
consummated in June 2003 and at the closing,
$70,000 was paid in cash, $485,000 was offset
against loans owed to us by our former Chief
Executive Officer and the remainder was payable
in monthly installments of $15,000, without
interest, beginning in July 2003. In July 2004, our
board approved the repayment of the outstanding
balance in full.

Effective March 18, 2003, we acquired the remain-
ing outstanding shares of capital stock of our
subsidiary, Trac Medical Solutions, Inc., previously
held by four other shareholders. Prior to the acqui-
sition, we owned 85.8% of the outstanding stock
of Trac Medical. In the transaction, we issued an
aggregate of 130,000 shares of our common stock
to the sellers, and also issued to the sellers who
will continue as employees of Trac Medical 20,000
options to purchase shares of common stock at an
exercise price equal to the closing price of our com-
mon stock on the closing date of the transaction.
In addition, these sellers were eligible to receive
up to an aggregate of 75,000 additional shares of
our common stock in the event that Trac Medical
achieved certain sales and income targets during
the twelve month period ending September 30,
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MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

2003. Further, these persons were eligible to earn
up to 525,000 additional bonus options in fiscal
year 2005 if certain sales and income targets were
met. These targets were not satisfied and no
additional equity compensation was earned.

We are the defendant in a third party complaint
filed by Shore Venture Group, LLC in the United
States District Court for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania. The caption of this matter is
Berwyn Capital Investments, Inc. v. Shore Venture
Group, LLC et al. (defendants and Shore Venture
Group, LLC as third party plaintiff) v. Authentidate
Holding Corp. and Authentidate, Inc. (third party
defendants). The third party complaint was filed
against us on May 7, 2001. Shore Venture is the
defendant to an action commenced by Berwyn
Capital. The third party complaint alleges a claim
for breach of contract and seeks indemnification.
A trial was held in October 2002 and we are
currently awaiting the verdict of the judge.
Management believes that the claim will not
have a material adverse impact on our financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

We are also the defendant in a case filed by Shore
Venture Group, LLC in the United States District
Court for the District of New Jersey, under the
caption Shore Venture Group, LLC, ef al v.
Authentidate Holding Corp., Authentidate, Inc.

and John T. Botti. This complaint was filed on
March 2, 2005, and an amended complaint was
filed on or about April 26, 2005. The plaintiffs in
this case seek additional shares of the common
stock of our subsidiary, Authentidate, Inc., the
right to exchange its stock in Authentidate, Inc.,
for publicly traded stock and securities in us, rights
under one or more of our patent applications and
damages in connection with an alleged copyright
infringement. The lawsuit requests damages,
injunctive relief, costs and attorneys' fees.

We intend to defend the action vigorously. Based
on the facts of which we are currently aware,
management believes that the resolution of all of
our claims with Shore Venture will not have a
materially adverse effect on our financial condi-
tion. However, no assurances can be given that
such belief will ultimately prove to be accurate or
that other facts adverse to our position currently
not known to management will not be uncovered,

in which case the ultimate resolution of this claim
could potentially have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition.

As described above, between June and August
2005, several purported shareholder class and
derivative actions were filed against our company
and certain current and former officers and direc-
tors. The complaints and current status of these
actions are described in detail under the caption
“Item 3. Legal Proceedings,” appearing elsewhere
in this Annual Report. Management is unable to
determine at this time whether these complaints
will have a material adverse impact on its financial
condition, results of operations or cash flow.

On August 25, 2005, we became aware of an

action filed against us entitled TimeCertain LLC

vs. Authentidate Holding Corporation, Authentidate,
Inc. and NCipher Inc. The plaintiff in this matter

has claimed that our products and systems
incorporating secure time-stamping technology
infringes certain of its patent rights. We are review-
ing this complaint and intend to vigorously contest
this action. Management is unable to determine at
this time whether these complaints will have a
material adverse impact on its financial condition,
results of operations or cash flow.

As we previously announced, effective November
15, 2004, John T. Botti no longer serves as our
President and Chief Executive Officer. In addition,
Mr. Botti subsequently retired from his position as
Chairman of the Board and on February 7, 2005,
we entered into an Agreement and Release with
Mr. Botti. Under that agreement, we agreed to pay
to Mr. Botti the severance payments as set forth in
his July 1, 2003 employment agreement and agreed
to retain him to provide consulting services to us
for a period of one year. Our severance obligations
to Mr. Botti are described in greater detail below
under the caption “Employment, Severance and
Change of Control Agreements.” Under the con-
sulting agreement, we agreed to pay Mr. Botti a
monthly retainer of $10,000 in consideration of his
provision of such services as may be requested by
our Chief Executive Officer. The severance benefits
have been accrued and are expected to be paid
over the next two years.




In addition, as we previously announced effective
December 31, 2004, Mr. Peter Smith no longer
serves as our Executive Vice President — Chief
Operating Officer. On February 8, 2005, we entered
into an Agreement and Release with Mr. Smith and
agreed to pay him a severance payment equal to
his base salary for a period of up to twelve months.
Our severance obligations to Mr. Smith are
described in greater detail below under the caption
“Employment, Severance and Change of Control
Agreements.” The benefits have been accrued for
in the second quarter and are expected to be paid
over the next three to nine months.

On November 23, 2004, we invested $750,000 in
an unaffiliated third party, Health Fusion, Inc.,
in connection with a strategic relationship we
established with this company. We will invest an
additional $750,000 in Health Fusion, contingent

CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

on Health Fusion achieving certain financial
and other performance objectives.

On December 6, 2004, we assumed certain

assets and liabilities of Cryptcom Securities, Inc.,
a privately-held technology consulting company,
for a purchase price of $125,000. We will be
obligated to pay an additional $425,000 to former
shareholders of Cryptcom Securities, Inc. in the
event our operation of the acquired assets gener-
ates certain financial measures by December 31,
2006. Additionally, we will be required to pay an
“earn out” equal to a percentage of net income
based on the performance of this division,
commencing on the earlier of December 6, 2007
or the fiscal year immediately following the fiscal
year during which the additional purchase price,
$425,000, has been earned, and following for a
term of five years from either date.

Following is a summary of the contractual commitments associated with our debt and lease obligations, as

well as our accrued severance as of June 30, 2005:

PAYMENT DUE BY PERIOD
CDONTRACTUAL LESS THAN MORE THAN
OBLIGATIONS* ToTAL 1 YEAR 1-3 YEARS | 3-5 YEARS | 5 YEARS
Long-term Debt Obligations $ 48,000 48,000 0 0 0
Operating Lease Obligations 780,979 562,701 218,278 0 0
Capital Lease Obligations 30,315 26,210 4,105 0 0
Total $ 859,294 636,911 222,383 0 0

*  We have certain royalty commitments associated with the sale and licensing of certain products. Royalty expense is generally based
on a percentage of underlying revenues which we may derive from our products. At June 30, 2005 royalty liability was immaterial.
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On November 23, 2004, we invested $750,000 in
an unaffiliated third party, Health Fusion, Inc.,
in connection with a strategic relationship we
established with this company. We will invest an
additional $750,000 in Health Fusion, contingent
on Health Fusion achieving certain financial and
other performance objectives.

On December 6, 2004, we assumed certain assets
and liabilities of Cryptcom Securities Inc. for a
purchase price of $125,000. We will be obligated to
pay an additional $425,000 to former shareholders
of Cryptcom Securities Inc. in the event our
operation of the acquired assets generates certain
financial measures by December 31, 2006.
Additionally, we will be required to pay an

“earn out” equal to a percentage of net income
based on the performance of this division
commencing on the earlier of December 6, 2007
or the fiscal year immediately following the fiscal
year during which the additional purchase price,
$425,000, has been earned, and following for a
term of five years from either date.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET
ARRANGEMENTS

We have not created, and are not party to, any
special-purpose or off-balance sheet entities for
the purpose of raising capital, incurring debt or
operating parts of our business that are not
consolidated into our financial statements. We do
not have any arrangements or relationships with
entities that are not consolidated into our financial
statements that are reasonably likely to materially
affect our liquidity or the availability of our capital
resources. We have entered into various agree-
ments by which we may be obligated to indemnify
the other party with respect to certain matters.
Generally, these indemnification provisions are
included in contracts arising in the normal course
of business under which we customarily agree to
hold the indemnified party harmless against losses
arising from a breach of representations related

to such matters as intellectual property rights.
Payments by us under such indemnification
clauses are generally conditioned on the other
party making a claim. Such claims are generally
subject to challenge by us and to dispute resolution

procedures specified in the particular contract.
Further, our obligations under these arrangements
may be limited in terms of time and/or amount
and, in some instances, we may have recourse
against third parties for certain payments made
by us. It is not possible to predict the maximum
potential amount of future payments under these
indemnification agreements due to the conditional
nature of our obligations and the unique facts of
each particular agreement. Historically, we have
not made any payments under these agreements
that have been material individually or in the
aggregate. As of June 30, 2005, we were not aware
of any obligations under such indemnification
agreements that would require material payments.

EFFECTS OF INFLATION AND
CHANGING PRICES

The impact of general inflation on our operations
has not been significant to date and we believe
inflation will continue to have an insignificant
impact on us. However, price deflation in the
major categories of components we purchase for
our Document Management Solutions Segment
has been substantial and is anticipated to continue
through fiscal 2005. Typically, new components
such as new generations of microprocessors and
new optical disk drive technologies, etc. are intro-
duced at premium prices, by our vendors. During
this period, we earn lower margins on our prod-
ucts. As the life cycle progresses, competitive
pressures could force vendor prices down and
thus improve our profit margins. Competitive
pressures from an evolving document imaging

_industry have required us to adjust our marketing

model for selling Docstar systems to accommodate
a lower entry point. Because much of the System
Integration Segments business is service-related,
price deflation has less of an impact on System
Integration profits. We do not believe that the
impact of inflation will have a significant impact
on our Security Software Solutions Segment
business lines.




PRESENT ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS NOT YET ADOPTED

In June 2005, the FASB's Emerging Issues Task
Force reached a consensus on Issue No. 05-6,
“Determining the Amortization Period for
Leasehold Improvements” (“EITF 05-6"). The
guidance requires that leasehold improvements
acquired in a business combination or purchased
subsequent to the inception of a lease be amortized
over the lesser of the useful life of the assets or a
term that includes renewals that are reasonably
assured at the date of the business combination or
purchase. The guidance is effective for periods
beginning after June 29, 2005. We do not believe
that the adoption of EITF 05-6 will have a
significant effect on our financial statements.

In May 2005, The Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 154, “Accounting Changes and
Error Corrections-a replacement of APB Opinion
No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3”. This Statement
replaces APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting
Changes; and FASB Statement No. 3, “Reporting
Accounting Changes in Interim Financial
Statements’ and changes the requirements for

the accounting for and reporting of a change in
accounting principle. This Statement applies to all
voluntary changes in accounting principle. It also
applies to changes required by an accounting
pronouncement in the unusual instance that the
pronouncement does not include specific transition
provisions. When a pronouncement includes
specific transition provisions, those provisions
should be followed. We do not expect this
pronouncement to have a material impact on

the financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB revised FAS No. 123
and issued FAS No. 123R, Share Based Payment.
Beginning in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006,
the statement requires companies to measure and
recognize compensation expense associated with
share-based payments to employees and directors
in the financial statements based on their fair
values. We adopted FAS 123R on July 1, 2005

and are applying the provisions of the statement
prospectively for any newly issued, modified or
settled award after the date of initial adoption, as

well as for any awards that were granted prior to
the adoption date for which the requisite service
has not been provided as of.the adoption date.

We intend to continue to use the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model to calculate total stock
compensation expense. We expect that the total
stock compensation expense in 2006 will be materi-
al and similar to the 2005 and 2004 pro-forma stock
compensation expense, depending on the number
and terms of new options granted, the exercise of
existing options, the expected volatility, expected
life, the dividend yield and risk free rate of return
in the future.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FAS No.

153, Exchanges of Non-monetary Assets — an
amendment of APB Opinion No. 29 Accounting
for Non-monetary transactions. This Statement
revises Opinion 29 to eliminate the exception for
non-monetary exchanges of similar productive
assets and replaces it with a general exception for
exchanges of non-monetary assets that do not have
commercial substance. The provisions of this
Statement shall be effective for non-monetary asset
exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning
after June 15, 2005. We do not expect the adoption
of FAS No. 153 to have a material effect on our
financial statements.

In November 2004, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued FAS No. 151,
Inventory Costs — an amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4. This Statement revises the guidance in
ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, “Inventory Pricing,” to
clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of
idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and
wasted material. This standard becomes effective
for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years
beginning on or after June 15, 2005. We do not
expect the adoption of FAS No. 151 to have a
material effect on our financial statements.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We have approximately $63 million invested in
high quality, short term investments as of June 30,
2005. We do not believe that any of our financial
instruments have significant risk associated with
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

market sensitivity. We are not exposed to signifi-
cant financial market risks from changes in foreign
currency exchange rates and are only minimally
impacted by changes in interest rates. However,

in the future, we may enter into transactions
denominated in non-U.S. currencies, or increase
the level of our borrowings, which could increase
our exposure to these market risks. We have not
used, and currently do not contemplate using,

any derivative financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

At any time, fluctuations in interest rates could
affect interest earnings on our cash and marketable
securities. We believe that the effect, if any, of rea-
sonably possible near term changes in interest rates
on our financial position, results of operations, and
cash flows would not be material. Currently, we

do not hedge these interest rate exposures. The
primary objective of our investment activities is

to preserve capital. We have not used derivative
financial instruments in our investment portfolio.

At June 30, 2005, our unrestricted cash and mar-
ketable securities totaled $62.5 million, most of
which was invested in auction rate securities and
money market accounts. The remainder of our cash
was in non-interest bearing checking accounts used
to pay operating expenses.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

The Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data Schedule are included herein.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS
WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNT-
ING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

We have had no disagreements with our account-
ants on any accounting or financial disclosures.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and
Procedures

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined

in Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) under the Exchange
Act) as of the end of the period covered by

this report, have concluded that, based on the
evaluation of these controls and procedures, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting

Our management, under the supervision of our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended).
Our internal control over financial reporting is
designed to provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. The company's internal
control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of manage-
ment and directors of the company; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.



Management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evalua-
tion of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of June 30, 2005. In making
this evaluation, management used the framework
in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based on our evaluation under the framework

in Internal Control - Integrated Framework, our
management has concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as
of June 30, 2005. Management's assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2005 has been audited

by Eisner LLL, an independent registered public
accounting firm, and they have issued an attesta-
tion report on management's assessment of the
company's internal control over financial reporting,
which is included in this Annual Report.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting

Our management, with the participation of the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
has evaluated whether any change in internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
Act) occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal
2005. As previously reported, on April 15, 2005, our
Chief Financial Officer advised certain members of
our Board of Directors of the existence of corporate
governance issues, which he believes if not correct-
ed, may lead to significant problems in the future.
In response to the letter of the Chief Financial
Officer, and to assist in the determination of
whether the issues raised warrant any changes

to our internal controls and/or Corporate
Governance Principles, our Audit Committee
engaged the services of a special counsel to review

the letter and report its findings to the Audit
Committee. We announced on July 14, 2005 that
the special counsel completed its investigation
and found no errors in disclosure or violations of
any laws or regulations. The special counsel did
confirm certain concerns raised by the Chief
Financial Officer relating potentially to future
disclosures, and that these concerns had been
effectively addressed by the Audit Committee
promptly after receiving the letter by, among
other things, realigning the reporting responsibili-
ties of our Chief Financial Officer to ensure that the
individuals that certify our Exchange Act reports
report directly to each other. After receiving the
special counsel’s report, the Audit Committee
decided no further action was necessary. Based
on that evaluation, and except as described above,
management concluded that there has been no
change in our internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.

Our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not
expect that our disclosure controls and procedures
or our internal controls will prevent all error and
all fraud. A control system, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reason-
able, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of
the control system are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints, and the benefits of controls
must be considered relative to their costs. Because
of the inherent limitations in all control systems,
no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances

of fraud, if any, within our company have

been detected.
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MARKET FOR CaoMMON EQUITY AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

OTHER INFORMATION

On September 7, 2005, we concluded that a non-
cash impairment charge of $4.8 million associated
with goodwill and other long-lived assets was
required under generally accepted accounting
principles for the 2005 fiscal year. We completed
our annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of
2005, using a discounted cash flow model for all
reporting units, and determined that a write-off of
goodwill of approximately $4.3 million in the
Corporate Division related to the Security Software
Solutions Segment was required. In addition, the
Security Software Solutions Segment recorded a
non-cash impairment charge of approximately
$500,000 related to long-lived assets. The write-off
resulted from our analysis that sales and income
growth during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005
was not as great as originally anticipated, thus
reducing expectations of growth for the next year

compared to similar analysis conducted in the past.

MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Upon the effectiveness of our public offering on
May 13, 1992, our common stock commenced
trading in the over-the-counter market and was
listed on the SmallCap Market of the NASDAQ
Stock Market under the symbol “BTWS.” In
April 2000 we commenced trading on the
NASDAQ National Market. Our common stock
currently trades on the NASDAQ National Market
under the symbol “ADAT.” The following is the
range of high and low closing prices for our
common stock on the NASDAQ National Market
for the periods indicated below:

HIGH Law

Fiscal Year 2005
Ist Quarter $ 10.64 $ 519
2nd Quarter 7.73 5.62
3rd Quarter 6.28 3.89
4th Quarter 4.48 2.37

Fiscal Year 2004
1st Quarter 5.60 2.85
2nd Quarter 14.95 5.23
3rd Quarter 18.20 11.51
4th Quarter 13.84 9.14

As of August 29, 2005, there were approximately
485 holders of record of our common stock.

We believe that there are in excess of 10,000
holders of our common stock.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have not paid any dividends on our common
stock since our inception. We do not expect to
pay any dividends on our common stock in the
foreseeable future and plan to retain earnings, if
any, to finance the development and expansion
of our business. Further, our Certificate of
Incorporation authorizes our Board of Directors
to issue preferred stock with a preferential right
to dividends. We are obligated to pay dividends
on our outstanding shares of Series B preferred
stock as follows:

* 28,000 presently outstanding shares of our Series
B preferred stock, which have the right to receive
dividends equal to an annual rate of 10% of the
issue price payable on a semi-annual basis.

SALES OF UNREGISTERED
SECURITIES

All sales of unregistered securities we made during
the 2005 fiscal year were previously reported on
our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarters ended September 30, 2004, December 31,
2004 and March 31, 2005 and / or Current Reports
on Form 8-K during such period.

REPURCHASE OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

We did not repurchase any of our equity securities
during the 2005 fiscal year.

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR
ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY
COMPENSATION PLANS

Disclosure pursuant to this item is provided in our
Proxy Statement.




Eisner LLP
E |$n er Accountants and Advisors

750 Third Avenue

New York, NY 10017-2703

Tel 212.949.8700 Fax 212.891.4100
www.eisnerlip.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Authentidate Holding Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Authentidate Holding Corp. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of June 30, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements'are free of material misstatement. An audit includes exam-
ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Authentidate Holding Corp. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2005, and
the consolidated results of their operations and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements referred to above, we audited Schedule II - Valuations
and Qualifying Accounts. In our opinion, this schedule, when considered in relation to the financial state-
ments taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information stated therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Authentidate Holding Corp’s internal control over financial reporting as
of June 30, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated
September 2, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective
operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

New York, New York
September 2, 2005

Independent Member of Baker Tilly International
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Eisner LLP

E |Sner Accountants and Advisors

750 Third Avenue

New York, NY 10017-2703

Tel 212.949.8700 Fax 212.891.4100
www.gisnerllp.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Authentidate Holding Corp.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, that Authentidate Holding Corp. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of June 30, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Authentidate Holding Corp.’s management
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Authentidate Holding Corp. maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by COSO. Also, in our opinion, Authentidate Holding Corp. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated balance sheet of Authentidate Holding Corp. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2005 and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended and our report dated
September 2, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

New York, New York
September 2, 2005

Independent Member of Baker Tilly International
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Telephone (518) 462 2030
Facsimile (518) 427 4499

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of Authentidate Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements
of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Authentidate Holding Corp. and Subsidiaries at June 30, 2004, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended June 30, 2004 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of
these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

i ceroandownlonpps o 2L

Albany, New York

September 3, 2004, except for the paragraph appearing
under “Revisions in the Classification of Certain Securities”
in Note 1, as to which the date is August 16, 2005.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2005 aAND 2004

Assets

Current assets:
Cashand cash equivalents ............ ... ... i i
Restricted cash ... ... .

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $406,877 and $420,916 at June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively ...........

Due from related parties ........ ... ..
Inventories ... ... ...

Total CUITeNt ASsets . ... vttt

Property and equipment, net ......... ...
Other assets:
Software development costs, net of accumulated amortization
of $1,758,200 and $3,950,487 at June 30,2005 and 2004 ...................

Other intangible assets, net .. .............. oo
Investmentin affiliate .. ... ... . . . . . .
Other assets ... ..o

Total ASSetS . .

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable .. ...
"Accrued expenses and other current liabilities . ............ ... .. o
Deferred revenue . ... ... .. oo i e
Current portion of obligations under capital leases ............................
Current portion of long-term debt ............. ... ... o
Lineofcredit . ... ..o

Total current labilities . ... ... oo

Long-term debt, net of current portion . ......... ... o
Long-term deferred revenue ........ ... ...
Other long-term accrued liabilities ...... ... . ...
Obligations under capital leases, net of current portion . ...........................

Total liabilities ...... ... . . .

Commitments and contingencies:
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock $.10 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized;
Series B — 28,000 shares issued and outstanding at
June 30,2005 and June 30,2004 . ... oo
Common stock, $.001 par value; 75,000,000 shares authorized; 34,399,161 shares
issued and outstanding at June 30, 2005 and 40,000,000 shares authorized;
32,951,656 shares issued and outstanding at June 30,2004 .................
Additional paid-in capital .. ... ... .
Accumulated deficit ...

Total shareholders’equity . ............... oo i
Total liabilities and shareholders’equity ............................

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

AUTHENTIDATE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

2005

$ 6,429,210
141,947
56,075,000

3,230,822

682
303,678

478,159

66,659,498
3,878,750

411,775

7,340,736
663,397
750,000

4,449

$ 79,708,605

1,336,840
2,739,553
2,059,427
23,903
48,000
429,756
15,743

6,653,222

446,250
243,520
3,909

7,346,901

2,800

34,399
160,488,500
(88,100,574)

(63,421)

72,361,704
$ 79,708,605

2004

25,064,823
365,116
48,925,000

3,039,044

125,206
474,309

77,993,498
3,396,454

497,977

11,616,736
727,763

4,448

$ 94,236,876

$ 859,360
1,838,860
1,881,277

69,968
208,239
571,622

6,130

5,435,456
48,000

35,421

5,518,877

2,800

32,952
157,602,589
(68,846,528)

(73,814)

88,717,999
$ 94,236,876



AUTHENTIDATE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

YEARS ENDED JuNE 30, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

2005 2004 2003
Net sales:
Products ... . $ 16,196,913 $ 17,886,219 24,143,959
SEIVICES .\ 1,356,525 1,355,852 1,142,512
Totalnetsales ..... ... .. .. .. . .. ... ... ... 17,553,438 19,242,071 25,286,471
Cost of sales:
Products . ... ... .. .. 8,444 464 11,900,718 18,575,474
SEIVICES . .o 561,249 511,865 594,362
Total costofsales ........... ... ... ... .. ... ..... 9,005,713 12,412,583 19,169,836
Gross proﬁt .................................. 8,547,725 6,829,488 6,116,635
Selling, general and administrative expenses ................. 21,476,932 14,032,170 12,600,901
Product development expenses ................ ... ... 3,139,381 2,377,613 2,534,777
Goodwill and intangible impairment . .................. ... 4,767,000 1,178,765 —
Total operating expenses ......................... 29,383,313 17,588,548 15,135,678
Loss from operations ......................... (20,835,588) (10,759,060) (9,019,043)
Other income (expense):
Interest and otherincome ........... ... ... ... ... ..... 1,678,263 1,304,354 572,481
Interest eXpense .......... oo (15,913) {6,231,981) (871,856)
Equity in net loss of affiliated companies ................ — — (514,427)
1,662,350 (4,927,627) (813,802)
Loss before income taxes . ..................... (19,173,238) (15,686,687) (9,832,845)
Income tax (expense) benefit ............ ... oL (10,808) 17,494 (6,464)
Netloss ................... ... .......... $ (19,184,046) $ (15,669,193) (9,839,309)
Per share amounts:
Basic and diluted loss per common share ...... ... ... .. $ 57) $ (.59) (.50)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

27



AUTHENTIDATE HOLDING CAORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSDLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
YEARS ENDED JuNE 30, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

Preferred Stock

Common Stock

Total Comprehensive
Number | $.10 Par | Number | $.001 Par Paid-in Accumulated Other Shareholders’ ncome
of Shares | Value |of Shares| Value Capital Deficit Equity Equity (Loss)

BALS 0, zao 32,100 |$ 3,210 |19,308,594|$ 19,309 [$ 61,376,632 |$ (42,999,497) |$ (507,431) $ 17,945334 |$ (9,898,291)
Exercise of stock warrants 3,000 3 3,297 3,300

Exercise of stock options 94,257 94 209,440 209,534

Convert Series C preferred
stock to common stock (400) (40) 82,560 82 (42) —_
Warrants for services 256,283 256,283
Cost to register

common shares {64,672) (64,672)

Cash and stock dividends to

Series B and Series C

preferred shareholders 61,996 62 155,921 (223,706) (67,723)

Repayment of note

receivable - shareholder 507,431 507,431

Currency translation
adjustment (62,160} (62,160)
Buy back Series A

préferred shares (100) (10) (849,990 (850,000)

Offering expenses (85,000) (85,000)

Private equity offering 660,077 660 1,999,375 2,000,035

Convertible debenture interest

paid in common shares 47,690 48 143,618 143,666

Debt discount related to

issuance of convertible

debentures, net of issuance

costs (5163,968) 3,433,931 3,433,931

Purchase minority interest,

Trac Medical 130,000 130 337,870 338,000

Net loss (9,839,309) {9,839,309) (9,839,309)
BAaLA u oo 31,600 3,160 [20,388,174 20,388 66,916,663 (53,062,512) —_ 13,868,650 |$  (9,901,469)
Exercise of stock warrants 2,003,455 2,003 5,459,078 5,461,081

Exercise of stock options 896,496 897 3,673,493 3,674,390

Convert Series C preferred

stock to common stock (3,600} (360) 743,034 743 (383)] —

Options and warrants

for services 756,058 756,058

Cost to register common shares (92,717) (92,717)

Convert debt to common stock 3,351,527 3,352 8,891,948 8,895,300

Currency translation

adjustment (64,765) (64,765)
Cost of private equity offerings (561,483) (561,483)

Private equity offerings 5,527,037 5,527 69,865,061 69,870,588

Convertible debenture interest

paid in common shares 39,543 40 117,205 117,245

Debt discount and beneficial

conversion feature related to

issuance of convertible de-

bentures, net of issuance costs 2,288,329 2,288,329

Deferred financing costs 276,839 276,839

Preferred stock dividends (114,823} {114,823)

Restricted shares compensation 2,390 2 12,498 12,500

Net loss (15,669,193) (15,669,193) (15,669,193}
BaLA = 0D-4 28,000 2,800 32,951,656 32,952 157,602,589 (68,846,528) — 88,717,999 | $ (15,733,958)
Exercise of stock warrants 840,657 841 1,370,695 1,371,536

Exercise of stock options 600,619 600 823,249 823,849

Options and warrants

for services 640,317 640,317

Cost to register common shares (9,977) (9,977)

Currency translation

adjustment 10,393 10,393
Preferred stock dividends 6,229 6 61,627 (70,000) (8,367)

Net loss (19,184,046) (19,184,046) (19,184,046)
BALANCE, June 30, 2005 28,000 |$ 2,800 |34,399,161|$ 34,399 |%$160,488,500 |$ (88,100,574) — $ 72,361,704 |$ (19,173,653)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.




AUTHENTIDATE HOLDING CDRP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JuNE 30, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from operating activities
Netloss ...
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

$ (19,184,046) $ (15,669,193) $ (9,839,309)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Depreciation and amortization . ............. ... .. ... oL 1,439,574 1,159,713 1,886,085
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable ... .......... ... ... 46,481 74,908 58,688
Equity in net loss of affiliated companies ... ..................... — — 514,427
Amortization of deferred ﬁnancing costs and debt discount .. ...... — 5,942,586 537,172
Interest paidinstock ....... ... ... ... — 117,245 143,666
Dividends paid instock .. ......... .. e 61,633 — —
Non-cash compensationand other ............................ 640,317 756,058 160,154
Goodwill impairment ................ o 4,276,000 1,178,765 —_
Impairment of other intangible assets .......................... 491,000 — —
NYS Grant inCOme .. ... v e — (732,000) —
Restricted shares non-cash compensation .. ..................... — 12,500 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of business acquired:
Accounts receivable and due from related parties ......... ... .. (238,941) 530,547 596,728
INVENLOTIES © . oo et (172,979) 67,895 286,601
Prepaid expenses and other currentassets ................. ... (3,850 (405,060) 54,518
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities . . 1,378,453 (818,090) (333,056)
Deferredrevenue .. ... . . .o 624,400 1,143,111 738,166
Income taxes payable ............... ... ... ... 9,613 (18,713) 7,043
Net cash used in operating activities ........... (10,632,345) (6,659,728) (5,189,117)
Cash flows from investing activities
Restricted cash . ... oo 223,169 (365,116) —_
Purchases of property and equipment ..... ... oL (1,251,529) (241,897) (283,903)
Other intangible assets acquired .......................... .. .. (362,472) (491,903) (93,780)
Software development costs ............... ... ... (528,794) (433,794) (296,197)
Notereceivable ... ... . .. . — — 350,000
Investment in affiliated companies .. .............. ... . ... (750,000) — (220,000)
Purchase of marketable securities . .. ............. . .. ..o (7,150,000) (48,925,000) —
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired ................. ... (125,000) — —
Other, met . .. 1) 22,847 (97,999)
Net cash used in investing activities ........... (9,944,627) (50,434,863) (641,879)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from private equity offerings . ................. ... .. — 69,553,236 1,955,035
Stock warrants exercised .. ... ... 1,371,536 5,461,081 3,300
Stock options exercised ... ... Lo 823,849 3,674,390 209,535
Dividends paid . ........... (35,000 (70,000) (35,000)
Sale of convertible debentures, net of issuance costs
($100,378 in' 2004, $163,968in 2003) . ... ... oo — 2,369,622 6,261,332
Principal payments on obligations under capital leases ........ ... . (77,577) (120,187) (121,935)
Payment of registration costs ... (9,976) (92,717) (64,672)
Net payments under line of credit .............. ... ... ... ... (141,866) (306,241) (875,531)
Deferred financing costs ................. . i — (137,300) (142,000)
Principal payments on long-termdebt ............ .. oL — (280,000) (35,815)
Payment Of MOTEAZE . . .. ..o — (1,281,700) —
Purchase Series A preferred shares . ............................ — — (70,000)
OtReTr e — (6,451) —
Net cash provided by financing activities ....... 1,930,966 78,763,733 7,084,249
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash flows .................... ... 10,393 (64,765) (62,160)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ............... ... (18,635,613) 21,604,377 1,191,093
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ................ ... ... 25,064,823 3,460,446 2,269,353
Cash and cash equivalents,end of year ............... ... 00vnn. $ 6,429,210 $ 25,064,823 $ 3,460,446
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AUTHENTIDATE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JunNE 30, 2005, 2004 aND 2003

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Principles
The financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements include the accounts of Authentidate Holding Corp. and its subsidiaries.
Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. Equity investments where the Company
does not exercise significant influence over the investee are accounted for under the cost method.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with maturities not exceeding three months
when purchased to be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2005 and 2004, cash equivalents were composed
primarily of investments in high quality short term investments such as commercial paper and overnight
interest bearing deposits.

Marketable Securities

The Company’s marketable securities are generally comprised of auction rate securities. These investments
are generally rated AAA or AA by one or more national rating agencies. The auction rate securities have
contractual maturities of up to 30 years. The auction rate securities the Company invests in generally have
interest re-set dates that occur every 7 or 28 days and despite the long-term nature of their stated contrac-
tual maturity, we have the ability to quickly liquidate these securities at ongoing auctions every 28 days or
less. The Company classifies its investments in auction rate securities as “available for sale.” These invest-
ments are recorded at cost which approximates fair market value due to their variable interest rates, which
typically reset every 7 or 28 days. As a result, the Company had no cumulative gross unrealized holding
gains (losses) or gross realized gains (losses) from its current investments. All income generated from these
current investments was recorded as interest income. Because the Company does not hold any one auction
rate security longer than one year, they have been classified as a current asset.

Revisions in the Classification of Certain Securities

On the Company’s 2004 Annual Report on Form 10K/ A, the Company reclassified $48,925,000 of auction
rate securities from cash and cash equivalents to marketable securities on its June 30, 2004 Balance Sheet.
In addition a reclass was made on the Company’s 2004 Statement of Cash Flows to present the purchase of
auction rate securities as an investing activity in the amount of $48,925,000. No revisions were made to the
Statement of Operations or the Statement of Shareholders’ Equity.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable represents receivables net of allowances for doubtful accounts. The allowance for
doubtful accounts reflects our best estimate of probable losses inherent in the accounts receivable balance.
The Company determines the allowance based on known troubled accounts, historical experience and
other currently available evidence. Due from related parties is generally comprised of travel and other
advances to employees.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and are valued at average cost.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets including property and equipment, software development costs, patent costs, trade-
marks and licenses are reviewed for impairment whenever events such as significant changes in the
business climate, changes in product offerings, or other circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable.




Property and Equipment

Property and equipment (including assets held under capital leases) are stated at cost. Depreciation and
amortization are determined using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives of the assets range
from three to forty years.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Renewals and betterments are capitalized.
When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, the applicable costs and accumulated depreciation
or amortization are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized.

Software Development Costs

Software development and modification costs incurred subsequent to establishing technological feasibility
are capitalized and amortized based on anticipated revenue for the related product with an annual
minimum equal to the straight-line amortization over the remaining economic life of the related products
(generally three years). Software development costs capitalized during 2005, 2004 and 2003 amounted to
approximately $529,000, $434,000 and $296,000, respectively. Amortization expense related to software
development costs for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was approximately $402,000, $291,000
and $1,103,000, respectively. These expenses are included in cost of sales. In fiscal 2005 we recorded an
impairment charge of $213,170 to Trac Medical capitalized software development costs, which is further
explained below under Goodwill.

Goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or whenever events such as significant changes in the
business climate, changes in product offerings, or other circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The Company performs its annual goodwill impairment test in the fourth quarter
of each fiscal year. The Company completed its annual impairment test in the fourth quarter of 2005, using
a discounted cash flow model for all reporting units, and these tests resulted in a goodwill impairment
charge for Authentidate, Inc. of $3,938,000 and a goodwill impairment charge of $338,000 for Trac Medical.
Additionally, we recorded an impairment charge to other long-term intangible assets of $277,830 and to
capitalized software development costs of $213,170 in Trac Medical. These write-offs resulted from the
Company’s analysis that the sales and income growth during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005 was

not as great as originally anticipated, thus reducing expectations of growth for the next year compared

to similar analysis conducted in the past. For the year ended June 30, 2004, the tests determined that a
write-off of goodwill of $1,178,765 was required in the DJS reporting unit. The DJS goodwill write-off was
required due to the growth slow-down in the technology sector causing DJS’s 2004 operating results to
fall short of management’s expectations. As a result, the Company reduced DJS’s cash flow and operating
results forecast for future periods. The goodwill balances for each reporting unit below are not tax
deductible. The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004
are as follows:

DJS Authentidate AG TracMed Total
Balance, June 30, 2003 $ 1,178,765 $ 3,987,571 $ 7,291,165 $ 338,000 $ 12,795,501
Writeoff of goodwill (1,178,765) — — — (1,178,765)
Balance, June 30, 2004 — 3,987,571 7,291,165 338,000 11,616,736
Activity in 2005 — (3,938,000) — (338,000 (4,276,000)
Balance, June 30, 2005 $ — $ 49,571 $  7291,165 $ — $ 7,340,736
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AUTHENTIDATE HOLDING CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOrR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

The Authentidate and AG reporting units have generated significant operating losses since inception.

The recoverability of the goodwill of the Authentidate and AG reporting units is predicated on the
reporting units” ability to execute their business plans and achieve forecasted operating results prepared by
management. If a reporting unit is unsuccessful in executing its business plan and achieving its forecasted
results over the next twelve months, the reporting unit may be required to record additional impairment
charges for goodwill and other long-lived assets.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the vears in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
delivery has occurred, the selling price is fixed and collectibility is reasonably assured. Service revenue is
recognized as services are provided. The Company enters into transactions that represent multiple-element
arrangements. These arrangements may include combinations of software licensing, postcontract customer
support, software upgrades, transactions, set-up fees, hosting fees and credentialing fees. Multiple-element
arrangements are assessed to determine whether they can be separated into more than one unit of account-
ing. A multiple-element arrangement is separated into more than one unit of accounting if all of the
following criteria are met: the delivered item has value to the customer on a stand alone basis; there is
objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items in the arrangement; and if the
arrangement includes a general right of return relative to the delivered items, delivery or performance

of the undelivered item is considered probable and substantially in the control of the Company. If these
criteria are not met, then revenue is deferred until such criteria are met or until the period over which the
last undelivered element is delivered, which is typically the life of the contract agreement. If these criteria
are met, the Company allocates total revenue among the elements based on the sales price of each element
when sold separately or based on the fair value of each element if they are not sold separately, which is
referred to as vendor specific objective evidence or VSOE.

The Company’s Document Solutions Segment has significant revenue from multiple element arrange-
ments. Docstar sales include computer systems with loaded software (including the perpetual software
license) as one deliverable and Docstar Softcare™ as an additional deliverable. Each of these deliverables
are separately sold products and therefore have vendor-specific objective evidence of fair value. In some
cases the deliverable is just the software and license with no computer. Docstar Softcare is a one year
postcontract customer support and upgrade product. The Company recognizes revenue on the system
and perpetual software license when the product is shipped and title passes to the customer. The Softcare
deliverable is considered a when-and-if-available element. Softcare revenue is recognized ratably over the
one year contract. Revenue is allocated to each element based on the prices of these two elements when
sold separately.

The System Integration Segment revenue is mainly derived from the sale of computer hardware and does
not generally involve multiple elements. Revenue is recognized when the hardware is shipped and title
passes to the customer. This segment also has professional services revenue and this revenue is recognized
when the services are completed and accepted by the customer. In some cases this segment may have a
multiple element transaction when professional services and hardware are both sold to the customer. The
hardware revenue is recognized when it’s shipped to the customer and the professional services portion is
recognized when the services are completed and accepted by the customer. Revenue for each element is
allocated based on the sales price the Company charges for these elements when sold separately (VSOE).




The Security Software Solutions Segment may have multiple element sales and the separate elements may
include licensing, maintenance, set-up, support, transaction fees and hosting services. The Company’s

Trac Medical subsidiary generally enters into sales contracts of one year. These contracts which require
customer set-up may contain elements including software hosting, licensing, credentialing, transaction and
postcontract customer support elements. Additionally, these contracts contain a prepaid transaction ele-
ment and any unused transactions may be carried over provided the customer renews their contract for
another year. As this service/product is new, there is no evidence of value for any element and VSOE has
not been established. Additionally, under these arrangements, all elements of the contract are being pro-
vided and/or accessed by the customer over our hosting site on a monthly basis over the estimated term
of the contract. Therefore, revenue is deferred until set-up is complete and then recognized ratably over the
estimated term of the contract.

With regard to the Company’s Authentidate Inc. product, the Electronic Post Mark (EPM), revenue is
recognized on the sale of EPMs to the USPS as EPMs are used by the end-user customer. With regard

to the Company’s Authentidate AG subsidiary, some revenue contracts may involve multiple element
arrangements and because the elements cannot be separated into more than one unit of accounting, the
revenue is deferred and recognized ratably over the life of the contract, which is generally one year.

The multiple elements may include license fees, support fees, professional services, time stamp fees and
maintenance fees. AG may also receive revenue from professional services (without other elements) and
such revenue is recognized as the professional services are completed and accepted by the customer.

Warranty Provisions

The Company provides a one-year warranty on hardware products it assembles in its Document Solutions
Segment. On products distributed for other manufacturers, the original manufacturer warranties the
product. Warranty expense was not significant to any of the years presented.

Advertising Expenses
The Company recognizes advertising expenses as incurred. Advertising expense for 2005, 2004 and 2003
was approximately $758,000, $778,000 and $461,000, respectively.

Product Development Expenses
These costs represent research and development expense and include salary and benefits, professional and
consultant fees, amortization of licenses and supplies.

Currency Translation Adjustment

Assets and liabilities of non-U.S. operations are translated at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date
generally and the income statements are translated at the average rates of exchange for the year. Gains or
losses resulting from translating non-U.S. currency financial statements are recorded in “Comprehensive
Income (Loss)” and accumulated in shareholders” equity in the caption “Accumulated Comprehensive
Income (Loss)” The “currency translation adjustment” balance at June 30, 2005 and 2004 was $63,421 and
$73,814, respectively.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

Estimates and Assumptions

Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities. Examples include estimates of loss contingencies and product life cycles and assumptions such
as elements comprising a software arrangement, including the distinction between upgrades/enhance-
ments and new products; when technological feasibility is achieved for our products; the potential
outcome of future tax consequences; and determining when investment impairments are other-than-
temporary. Actual results and outcomes may differ from management’s estimates and assumptions.

We have based our estimates on historical experience and on various assumptions that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances and we evaluate our estimates on a regular basis and make
changes accordingly. Historically, our estimates relative to our critical accounting estimates have not
differed materially from actual results; however, actual results may differ from these estimates under
different conditions. If actual results differ from these estimates and other considerations used in
estimating amounts reflected in our consolidated financial statements, the resulting changes could have
a material adverse effect on our consolidated statement of income, and in certain situations, could have
a material adverse effect on liquidity and our financial condition.

With regard to revenue recognition, revenue from the sale of products is recognized when persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the selling price is fixed and collectibility is
reasonably assured. Service revenue is recognized as such services are provided. We enter into transactions
that represent multiple-element arrangements. Those arrangements include combinations of licensing,
transactions, set-up, maintenance, support and hosting services. Multiple-element transactions are assessed
to determine whether they can be separated into more than one unit of accounting. A multiple-element
arrangement is separated into more than one unit of accounting if all of the following criteria are met (a)
the delivered item has value to the customer on a stand alone basis; (b) there is objective and reliable
evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item; and (c) if the arrangement includes a general right of
return relative to the delivered item, delivery or performance of the delivered item is considered probable
and substantially in the control of the Company. If these criteria are not met, then revenue is deferred until
such criteria are met or until the period over which the last undelivered element is delivered, which is
typically the life of the contract agreement.

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability
of our customers to make required payments. We write down inventory for estimated obsolescence or
unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the cost of the inventory and the estimated
market value based on assumptions about future demand and market conditions. We make estimates

on the future recoverability of capitalized goodwill in the Security Software Solutions Segment, which is
highly dependent on the future success of the marketing and sales of this segment. We record a valuation
allowance against deferred tax assets when we believe it is more likely than not that such deferred tax
assets will not be realized.



Stock-Based Compensation

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (APB No. 25) in accounting for its
stock option plans and, accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized in the Company’s financial
statements for stock options under any of the stock plans which on the date of grant the exercise price per
share was equal to or exceeded the fair value per share. However, compensation cost has been recognized
for warrants granted to non-employees for services provided. The Company has also adopted the disclo-
sure requirements of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
(FAS No. 123) and FAS No. 148 with respect to pro forma disclosure of compensation expense for options
issued. For purposes of the pro forma disclosures, the fair value of each option grant is estimated on the
grant date using the Black Scholes option-pricing model. Had the Company recorded compensation
expense for the fair value of stock options, net loss and loss per share would have been affected as
indicated by the pro forma amounts below.

2005 2004 2003

Net loss

Applicable to common shareholders . ... ... $ (19,254,046) $ (15,784,016) $ (10,063,015)

Add: Total stock-based employee

compensation expense determined '

under fair value method ................. (3,906,472) (4,201,473) (1,981,504)

Deduct: Stock-based emplayee

compensation charged to operations ... .. .. — 190,000 —

Proforma ..., $ (23,160,518) $ (19,795,489) $ (12,044,519)
Basic and diluted loss per share

Asteported . ... $ (57) $ (59 $ {:50)

Proforma ............coiiiii .. $ (68) $ (.73) $ (.60)

The weighted average fair value of each option granted under the Company’s employee option plans
during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $1.55, $2.11 and $.60, respectively. These amounts were determined
using the Black Scholes option-pricing model, which values options based on the stock price at the grant
date, the exercise price of the option, the expected life of the option, the estimated volatility of the stock,
expected dividend payments and the risk-free interest rate over the expected life of the option. The
dividend yield was zero in 2005, 2004 and 2003. The expected volatility was based on the historic stock
prices and was 96.0%, 96.4% and 95.3% for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The risk-free interest rate
was the rate available at the grant date on zero coupon U.S. government issues with a term equal to the
remaining term for each grant. The risk-free rate ranged from 3.4% to 4.2% in 2005, 3.0% to 4.4% in 2004
and 3.0% to 5.1% in 2003, respectively. The expected life of the options was estimated based on the exercise
history from previous grants and is estimated to be 3 to 5 years.

In December 2004, the FASB revised FAS No. 123 and issued FAS No. 123R, Share Based Payment.
Beginning in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006, the statement requires companies to measure and
recognize compensation expense associated with share-based payments to employees and directors in
the financial statements based on their fair values. The Company adopted FAS 123R on July 1, 2005 and
will apply the provisions of the statement prospectively for any newly issued, modified, or settled award
after the date of initial adoption, as well as for any awards that were granted prior to the adoption date
for which the requisite service has not been provided as of the adoption date. The Company intends to
continue to use the Black Scholes option-pricing model to calculate total stock compensation expense.

The Company expects that the total stock compensation expense in 2006 will be material and similar to
the 2005 and 2004 pro-forma stock compensation expense, depending on the number and terms of new
options granted, the exercise of existing options, the expected volatility, expected life, the dividend yield
and risk free rate of return in the future.
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Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securities and trade accounts receivable. To reduce credit risk, the Company places
its investments with several high credit quality financial institutions and typically invests in AA or better
rated investments. The Company’s credit customers are not concentrated in any specific industry or
business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon factors surrounding
the credit risk of specific customers, historical trends and other information.

At June 30, 2005, there was one customer whose accounts receivable balance was approximately 10% of
total accounts receivable. At June 30, 2004, there were two customers whose accounts receivable balance
exceeded 10% of total accounts receivable.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, no customers accounted for more than 10% of consolidated
sales. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, one DJS customer accounted for approximately 22% of
consolidated net sales and represented approximately $296,000 of the $6.8 million gross profit. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, another DJS customer accounted for approximately 50% of consolidated
net sales and represented approximately $625,000 of the $6.1 million in gross profit. Sales to these DJS
customers were primarily low margin computer hardware sales.

Investment in Affiliates

In fiscal 2005 the Company invested $750,000 in an unaffiliated third party, Health Fusion, Inc., in connec-
tion with a strategic relationship established with this company. In the event Health Fusion achieves
certain financial and other performance objectives, the Company has the right to invest another $750,000.
The Company owns approximately 3.7% of the outstanding stock of Health Fusion and accounts for this
investment using the cost method.

Also, during fiscal 2005, we acquired Cryptcom Securities, Inc. in an asset purchase arrangement for
$125,000. As a part of this acquisition, we assumed certain liabilities and also assumed the performance on
several customer contracts. We employed three employees from Cryptcom Securities, Inc. The Cryptcom
business is reported as part of our Security Software Solutions Segment. As part of the asset purchase
agreement, we are obligated to pay an additional $425,000 in the event certain financial measures are
achieved by this group. Additionally, we will pay an “earn-out” equal to a percentage of net income
based on the performance of this group, commencing on the earlier of December 6, 2007 or the fiscal

year immediately following the fiscal year during which the additional purchase price, $425,000, has

been earned, and following for a term of five years from either date. The purchase price was allocated

to long-term intangible assets.

2. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY

Authentidate Holding Corp. (AHC) and its subsidiaries Authentidate, Inc. (Authentidate), Authentidate
International, AG (AG), DJS Marketing Group, Inc. (DJS), and Trac Medical Solutions, Inc. (Trac Med),
collectively referred to as the “Company/ are engaged in the following businesses. These divisions are
separated into different reporting segments for management and strategic purposes. The Docstar Division
comprises the Document Solutions Segment. This segment develops and sells document imaging software
and related products. DJS comprises the Systems Integration Segment, which markets network integration
services, Internet services and related computer hardware. Authentidate, Inc., AG and Trac Med comprise
the Security Software Solutions Segment, which provides authentication and security software solutions.
All of the Company’s businesses (except for AG) currently operate in New York state, but have sales

on a national basis. Authentidate International AG is located in Germany and sells to the European
market primarily.




What follows is a brief history of the current businesses the Company is involved in. The Docstar Division
was formed in 1995 to develop innovative document management software solutions. The software was
developed in-house and loaded on a personal computer, which was also assembled in-house and sold
through a national dealer network. Today the Company also offers a “software only” solution to dealers
and the product is also sold directly to end-users. In March 1996, the Company acquired DJS, which was
engaged in the systems integration industry in the Albany NY region. This business has also provided
computer hardware to corporate and organizational accounts on a national basis. However, the focus

of the business today is to market and sell professional services, which may or may not include a
hardware component.

In June 1999, AHC established a majority owned (approximately 98%) subsidiary, Authentidate, Inc.
(Authentidate), to engage in a new software business providing users with a service which can verify the
authenticity of digital images by employing a secure clock that will date stamp the images when received,
providing proof of time, date and also proof of content via the Internet or via facsimile machine. In July
2002, the Company entered into a Strategic Alliance Agreement with the United States Postal Service to
serve as the preferred provider of the USPS Electronic Postmark. The EPM uses our patent pending tech-
nology, offering highly sophisticated encryption methodology ensuring document authenticity. Under the
Strategic Alliance Agreement, the Company is required to meet certain performance metrics (including a
revenue metric). In September 2004, the Postal Service notified the Company of a failure to comply with

the current revenue metrics, which commenced a six month period to achieve compliance with the metrics.

The Company began negotiating with the Postal Service to complete a modification of this metric and in
December 2004 believed that it had cured the default. However, in May 2005, the Company received a
second notice from the Postal Service stating that it had failed to attain the performance metrics required
by the Strategic Alliance Agreement during the period February 2005 through April 2005. In its notice,
the Postal Service has advised the Company that although it intends to exercise its right to terminate the
Strategic Alliance Agreement if the Company is unable to cure this default, it is willing to discuss further
plans that the Company may have to attain the performance metrics in the Strategic Alliance Agreement.
The Company is currently engaged in negotiations with the Postal Service to enter into an amendment to
the Strategic Alliance Agreement in order to modify these metrics. No assurances, however, can be given
that the Company will be successful in curing the default or completing these negotiations.

In March 2000, Authentidate, Inc. formed and held a 39% interest in a joint venture known as Authentidate
International, AG, with a German company, Windhorst New Technologies, Agi.G., to market Authentidate
in countries outside of the Americas, Japan, Australia, New Zealand and India. In March 2002, the
Company purchased the remaining 61% of Authentidate AG to secure worldwide rights for marketing

of the Authentidate technology.

In March 2001, the Company formed and held a majority interest in a subsidiary named Trac Medical
Solutions, Inc. to develop and provide authentication software services in the medical supply industry

for the processing of Certificates of Medical Necessity, written orders and other related forms. In 2003,
AHC purchased the remaining shares of its Trac Med subsidiary, which were previously held by four
other shareholders. Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of March 13, 2003, AHC issued

an aggregate of 130,000 shares of its common stock with a fair value of $338,000 to the sellers, and also
issued to the sellers who will continue as employees of Trac Med, 20,000 options to purchase shares of
common stock at an exercise price equal to the closing price of AHC’s common stock as of the closing date
of the transaction. In addition, the sellers, some of whom continued as employees of Trac Med, could have
received additional shares of stock and performance options if Trac Med achieved certain sales and income
performance targets through June 30, 2005. Trac Med did not achieve any of these targets and no further
shares or options were issued or will be issued to the sellers in connection with this transaction.
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In May 2001, the Company became a 50% owner in a joint venture known as Authentidate Sports (Sports)
with outside partners to provide the same Authentidate services in the sports memorabilia industry.
During fiscal 2003, the Company and its partner closed Sports and discontinued operations. The
Company’s share of net losses in this joint venture in 2003 was approximately $514,000, and this

amount is included in the loss from operations.

3. LOSS PER SHARE

The following is basic and diluted loss per common share information:

2005 2004 2003
Netloss o $ (19,184,046) $ (15,669,193) $ (9,839,309)
Preferred stock dividends . .................... ... ... ..... (70,000) (114,823) (223,706)
Net loss applicable to common stockholders ............... .. $ (19,254,046) $ (15,784,016) $ (10,063,015)
Weighted average shares . .............. ... 33,830,966 26,980,843 20,028,736
Basic and diluted loss per common share .. .................. $ (57) $ (59) $ (.50)

All common stock equivalents were excluded from the loss per share calculation for all periods presented
because the impact is antidilutive. At June 30, 2005, options (4,234,498), warrants (1,276,314) and convert-
ible preferred stock (28,000 preferred shares convertible into 500,000 common shares) were outstanding,.
At June 30, 2004, options (4,565,569), warrants (2,190,088) and convertible preferred stock (28,000 preferred
shares convertible into 500,000 common shares) were outstanding. At June 30, 2003, options (5,003,117),
warrants (3,968,539), convertible preferred stock (1,243,034) and convertible debentures (2,528,192) were
outstanding.

4. INVENTORIES

Inventories relate to Docstar and DJS only and at June 30 consist of:

2005 2004

Purchased components and raw materals ..................... $ 229305 § 75,493
Finishedgoods ....... ..o i 74,373 49,713
$ 303678  $ 125,206




5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at June 30 consist of the following:

2005 2004 Estimated
Useful Life
_ In Years
Buillding ... $ 1,728,762  $ 1,618,640 40
Land ... 698,281 698,281 N/A
Machinery and equipment . ........ ... . .o oL 4,647,108 3,257,432 3-6
Demonstration and rental computers ...................... 125,732 125,732 5-6
Fumniture and fixtures ......... ... .. .. 354,091 725,626 5-7
Leasehold improvements ..................... ... .. ... 103,934 50,069 5
7,657,908 6,475,780
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ............ (3,779,158) (3,079,326)

$ 3878750 & 3,396,454

In June 1999, the Company completed construction of a new office / production facility in Schenectady,
New York for approximately $2,300,000. The Company was awarded a grant totaling $1,000,000 from the
Empire State Development Corporation (ESDC) (an agency of New York state) to be used towards the
construction of the facility. The grant stipulated that the Company was obligated to achieve certain annual
employment levels at the new site between January 1, 2002 and January 1, 2004 ,or some or all of the grant
will have to be repaid. Although the Company did not achieve the agreed upon employment levels, the
Company reached a settlement agreement with the ESDC regarding repayment of the grant award.
Beginning September 2003, the Company agreed to repay $268,000 of the grant amount at the rate of
$10,000 per month, interest free. Accordingly, $732,000 of the deferred grant was recognized as other
income during fiscal year ending June 30, 2004. The remaining $268,000 of deferred grant was reclassified
to longterm debt (Note 8). During fiscal 2005 and 2004, the Company repaid $120,000 and $100,000,
respectively, of this amount. The remainder of the financing for the new facility, totaling approximately
$1,400,000, was provided by a local financial institution in the form of a mortgage loan.

Depreciation expense on property and equipment for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was
approximately $769,000, $638,000 and $662,000, respectively.

6. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

‘Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following at June 30:

2005 2004
ACCrued SEVETANCE . ...ttt e $ 928,385 % 9,722
Litigation accrual ......... ... ... .. . oo 500,000 500,000
Other . 1,311,168 1,329,138

b} 2,739,553 § 1,838,860
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7. LINE OF CREDIT

The Company’s subsidiary, DJS, has a revolving line of credit in the amount of $2.5 million with a financial
institution, of which approximately $430,000 was outstanding at June 30, 2005. The interest rate is prime
(minimum prime rate of 7%) plus 1.75%. At June 30, 2005, the interest rate was 8.75%. DJS may borrow

on this line based on a formula of qualified accounts receivable and inventory. Based upon this formula,
$833,000 was available for use at June 30, 2005, of which $403,000 was unused. The line was collateralized
by all assets of DJS and is guaranteed by Authentidate Holding Corp. Under the line of credit agreement,
DJS is required to comply with certain restrictive covenants including tangible net worth and debt to
tangible net worth. As of June 30, 2005, the Company was in compliance with its debt covenants.

8. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt at June 30 consists of the following:
2005 2004
Note payable to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer in connection
with the purchase of 100 shares of Series A preferred stock. — $ 88,239
Grant with Empire State Development Corporation of $268,000 payable in
monthly payments of $10,000, without interest (Note 5). 48,000 168,000
48,000 256,239
Less: Current portion {48,000) (208,239)
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ —_— $ 48,000

9. INCOME TAXES

Income tax (benefit) expense for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 consists of currently payable
state and local income taxes.

At June 30, 2005, the Company has federal net operating loss carryforwards for tax purposes
approximating $64,915,000. The years in which the net operating loss carryforwards expire are as follows:
2008-$1,568,000; 2009-$867,000; 2011-$2,761,000; 2012-$685,000; 2013-$3,202,000; 2019-$1,348,000; 2020-
$7,681,000; 2021-$2,868,000, 2022-$7,941,000, 2023-$8,190,000, 2024-$13,304,000 and 2025-$14,500,000.

Because of significant changes in ownership during the prior years, the use of net operating loss
carryforwards may be subject to limitation.

Pre-tax book (loss) from foreign sources totaled ($1,288,862), ($1,581,676) and ($1,544,741) for the years
ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.



The following table reconciles the income tax (benefit) expense at the federal statutory rate of 34% to the
effective tax rate.

2005 2004 2003
Computed expected tax benefit . ................. ... ..., $ (6,518,901) $ (5,333,474) $ (3,343,167)
Increase in valuation allowance ............ ... ... ... ...... — 1,915,588 3,465,936
Effect on valuation allowance of adjustment to
net operating loss carryforward ................ .. ..., 6,086,700 1,245,362 —
Nondeductible goodwill impairment ...................... 1,620,780 400,780 —
Nondeductible interest expense . . ........ ... ... ... ... — 2,020,479 —
State income taxes, net of federal benefit ................... ©(1,653,423) (824,604) (659,832)
Nondeductible foreignlosses .................. . ... ... 438,213 537,770 525,212
Other nondeductible expenses ........................... 37,439 20,605 18,315
Income tax expense (benefit) .............. ... L. $ 10808 $  (17499) $ 6,464

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as of
June 30 are presented below:

2005 2004
Deferred income tax asset:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ............... e $ 152,079 $ 163,307
INVENEOIIES © oottt e 75,120 76,135
Software developmentcosts ................. ... .. — 849,679
Investments in affiliated companies ..................... 315,964 302,804
Other intangible assets . ............................... 1,032,247 1,414,378
Deferred compensation ............. ... ... ... 186,771 576,872
Accrued expenses and other liabilitles ................... 1,014,913 251,798
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards . ........... 26,816,149 20,238,178
Other .. 6,719 5,872
Total gross deferred tax assets .................... 29,599,962 23,879,023
Less: Valuation allowance . . . ...........ooeeeeeeoooni.. (29,006,300) (23,677,249)
Net deferred taxasset .. ............ ... .. ... .... 593,662 201,774
Deferred income tax liability:
Software development costs ....................... (378,330) —_—
Equipment, principally due to differences
in depreciation methods . ......... ... ... .. (215,332) (201,774)

Net deferred income taxes . ...................... $ — $ —

The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax asset since it believes it is
more likely that such deferred tax asset will not be realized. The valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets as of June 30, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $29,006,000 and $23,677,000, respectively. The net
change in the total valuation allowance for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 was an increase of
approximately $5,329,000, $1,916,000 and $3,466,000, respectively.
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10. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Company is obligated under operating leases and capital leases for certain equipment and facilities
expiring at various dates through the year 2007.

As of June 30, 2005, future minimum payments by year and in the aggregate for non-cancelable operating
leases with initial terms of one year or more and capital leases consist of the following:

Capital Leases Operating Leases
Fiscal year ending June 30:
2006 L $ 26210 $ 562,701
2007 4,105 207,835
2008 L — 10,443
30,315 $ 780,979
Amounts representing interest . ................... . L (2,503)
Present value of net minimum lease payments .................... 27,812
Less: Current portion . .......oo i (23,903)
Long-term portion ......... ... .. ... .. $ 3909

Rental expense was approximately $765,000, $644,000 and $516,000 for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004,
and 2003, respectively. The amount of accumulated amortization for capital leases at June 30, 2005 and
2004 was $43,767 and $172,292, respectively. Certain portions of the equipment financed by these capital
leases may be purchased at the end of the lease term for a bargain purchase amount. The book value of
equipment financed by these capital leases at June 30, 2005 is approximately $35,000.

11. PREFERRED STOCK

The Board of Directors is authorized to issue shares of preferred stock, $.10 par value per share, from time
to time in one or more series. The Board may issue a series of preferred stock having the right to vote on
any matter submitted to shareholders including, without limitation, the right to vote by itself as a series,
or as a class together with any other or all series of preferred stock. The Board of Directors may determine
that the holders of preferred stock voting as a class will have the right to elect one or more additional
members of the Board of Directors, or the majority of the members of the Board of Directors. The Board of
Directors has designated a series of preferred stock which has the right to elect a majority of the Board

of Directors. The holders of Series A preferred stock which have the right to elect a majority of the Board
of Directors are therefore able to control the Company’s policies and affairs.

In June 2003, the Company purchased all of the Series A preferred stock (100 shares) from its former Chief
Executive Officer for $850,000. Payment terms are as follows: $70,000 in cash was paid, $485,000 was offset
against loans owed to the Company by its Chief Executive Officer, and the remainder was paid in monthly
installments of $15,000 commencing July 2003, interest free (Note 21).

The Company currently has 28,000 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock outstanding. The Series B
preferred is convertible into 500,000 shares of common stock and is more fully described in Note 20 -
Private Equity Offerings.




12. STOCK OPTION PLANS AND STOCK WARRANTS

2000 and 1992 Employees Stock Option Plans

In March 2001, the shareholders approved the 2000 Employees Stock Option Plan (the “2000 Plan”), which
provided for the grant of options to purchase up to 5,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock.

In February 2004, the shareholders approved an amendment to the 2000 Plan, which serves to authorize
the issuance of an additional 5,000,000 shares of common stock under the 2000 Plan through the grant of
incentive stock options and nonqualified options. The 2000 Plan expires in 2010.

The 1992 Employees Stock Option Plan (the “1992 Plan”) provided for the grant of options to purchase
3,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The 1992 Plan expired in May 2002.

Under the terms of the two Plans, options granted thereunder may be designated as options which qualify
for incentive stock option treatment (“ISO”) under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, or options
which do not so qualify {“non-ISOs”).

The Plans are administered by a Compensation Committee (“Committee”) designated by the Board of
Directors (“Board”). The Compensation Committee is comprised entirely of outside directors. The Board or
the Committee, as the case may be, has the discretion to determine eligible employees and the times and
the prices at which options will be granted, whether such options shall be ISOs or non-ISOs, the period
during which each option will be exercisable and the number of shares subject to each option. Options
generally begin to vest one year after the date of grant. Vesting generally occurs one-third per year over
three years. Options generally have a life of five years. The Board or the Committee has full authority to
interpret the Plans and to establish and amend rules and regulations relating thereto. Under the two Plans,
the exercise price of an option designated as an ISO may not be less than the fair market value of the
Company’s common stock on the date the option is granted. However, in the event an option designated
as an ISO is granted to a ten percent shareholder, the exercise price shall be at least 110% of such fair mar-
ket value. The aggregate fair market value on the grant date of shares subject to options which are desig-
nated as ISOs which become exercisable in any calendar year shall not exceed $100,000 per optionee.

The Board or the Committee may in its sole discretion grant bonuses or authorize loans to or guarantee
loans obtained by an optionee to enable such optionee to pay any taxes that may arise in connection with
the exercise or cancellation of an option. As of June 30, 2005 and 2004, no loans had been granted or guar-
anteed. Loans may not be granted or guaranteed to executive officers.

In fiscal 2004, the Company granted to advisory board members options to acquire 140,000 shares of
Company common stock for services to be provided over a three year period. The options which vest over
a three year period have been valued using the Black Scholes Model, which resulted in a charge to opera-
tions in fiscal 2004 of approximately $489,000. These options were cancelled during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005.
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Weighted Average

Number of Option Exercise

Shares Price Per Share

Outstanding at June 30,2002 .. ... .. . oo 5,120,349 $ 448
Options granted equal tomarketprice .. .............. ... ... ... 459,075 3.15
Options granted greater than marketprice ............. ... ... ... ... 373,667 ‘ 3.21
Options exercised . ....... ... . (63,448) 2.04
Options cancelled or surrendered .............. .. .. oo (1,046,526) 4.06
Outstanding at June 30,2003 ... ... ... . . i 4,843,117 $ 4.38
Options granted equal to marketprice ......... ... ... ... ... . L 1,274,950 8.18
Options cancelled or surrendered ............ ... ... oo (893,502) 4.89
Options eXerciSed .. ...ttt (811,496) 4.24
Outstanding at June 30,2004 ........ ... ... ... i 4,413,069 $ 540
Options granted equal to marketprice .. ...... ... ... ... oo 1,635,840 5.82
Options exercised ..ottt (590,619) 1.37
Options cancelled or surrendered .......... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... (1,483,792) 7.72
Outstanding at June 30,2005 ..........c.0iiietererernssrocnananssn 3,974,498 $ 5.31

The following is a summary of the status of employee stock options at June 30, 2005:

Outstanding Options Exercisable Options
Actual Weighted Weighted
Exercise Remaining Average Average
Price Range Number  Contractual Life  Exercise Price Number Exercise Price
$1.75-% 3.99 1,072,529 3.2 $3.14 753,967 $3.14
$400-3% 599 1,850,329 25 $4.93 1,404,857 $4.93
$6.00-$18.20 1,051,640 42 $8.19 276,358 $851

As of June 30, 2005 and 2004, 2,435,182 shares and 2,993,354 shares, respectively, were exercisable under
the 2000 and 1992 Employees Stock Option Plans.




Non-Executive Director Stock Option Plan

In January 2002, our shareholders approved the 2001 Non-Executive Director Stock Option Plan (the “2001
Director Plan”). Options may be granted under the 2001 Director Plan until December 2011 to (i) non-exec-
utive directors as defined and (ii) members of any advisory board established by the Company who are
not full-time employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The 2001 Director Plan provides that
each non-executive director will automatically be granted an option to purchase 20,000 shares upon joining
the Board of Directors and 10,000 on each September 1st thereafter, prorated based upon the amount of
time such person served as a director during the period beginning twelve months prior to September 1.
The shareholders approved an amendment to the 2001 Director Plan in February 2004 to grant all new
non-executive directors an option to purchase 40,000 shares of common stock on the date such person is
appointed or elected. Additionally, the shareholders also approved a provision that non-executive direc-
tors, upon joining the Board and for a period of one year thereafter, will be entitled to purchase restricted
stock from the Company at a price equal to 80% of the closing price on the date of purchase up to an
aggregate purchase price of $100,000. Each eligible director of an advisory board will receive, upon joining
the advisory board, and on each September 1st thereafter, an option to purchase 5,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock, providing such person has served as a director of the advisory board for the
previous 12-month period.

The Company’s shareholders were asked to adopt the 2001 Director Plan since the 1992 Non-Executive
Director Stock Plan (the “1992 Director Plan”) expired in April 2002. Under the 1992 Director Plan, which
was adopted by our shareholders in April 1992, directors were automatically granted a fully vested option
to purchase 20,000 shares upon joining the Board of Directors and a fully vested option to purchase 10,000
shares on each September 1 thereafter.

The exercise price for options granted under the 2001 and 1992 Director Plans is 100% of the fair market
value of the common stock on the date of grant. The “fair market value” is the closing NASDAQ price, or
if the Company’s common stock is not quoted by NASDAQ, as reported by the National Quotation
Bureau, Inc., or a market maker of the Company’s common stock. If the common stock is not quoted by
any of the above, the Board of Directors acting in good faith will determine fair market value. The exercise
price of options granted under both the 2001 and 1992 Director Plans must be paid at the time of exercise
in cash. The term of each option commences on the date it is granted and unless terminated sooner, as pro-
vided in the 2001 and 1992 Director Plans, expires five years from the date of grant. The 2001 and 1992
Director Plans are administered by a committee of the board of directors composed of not fewer than three
persons who are officers of the Company (the “Committee”). The Committee has no discretion to deter-
mine which non-executive director or advisory board member will receive options or the number of shares
subject to the option, the term of the option or the exercisability of the option. However, the Committee
will make all determinations of the interpretation of both the 2001 and 1992 Director Plans. Options grant-
ed under the 2001 and 1992 Director Plans are not qualified for incentive stock option treatment.

In fiscal 2005, the Company granted to two new directors options to acquire an aggregate of 80,000 shares

of Company common stock at an exercise price of $4.88 per share. In addition, we granted existing direc-
tors 37,500 options at an exercise price of $7.15 per share.
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A schedule of director stock option activity is as follows:

Weighted Average

Number of Option Exercise

Shares Price Per Share

Qutstanding at June 30,2002 .. ... .. ... ... ... 160,000 $ 284
Options granted equal to market price . ......................... 50,000 2.63
Options cancelled or surrendered ... ... ... . L (10,000 3.88
Options exercised ... ... (40,000 2.78
Outstanding at June 30,2003 ....................... . 160,000 $ 272
Options granted equal to market price .. .............. ... ....... 77,500 6.93
Options granted lower than market price ...................... .. ... 40,000 10.58
Options expired . ... o (40,000) 10.58
Options exercised . ... ... (85,000) 2.7
Quistanding at June 30,2004 . ... ... .. .. .. i 152,500 $ 487
Options granted equal to marketprice . ......... ... ... . ... . ... 117,500 5.60
Options exercised . ... ... (10,000 0.85
Outstanding at June 30,2005 .. ... ......................... 260,000 $ 5.36

The options outstanding at June 30, 2005 range in exercise price from $2.25 to $10.58 per share and have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.85 years.

As of June 30, 2005 and 2004, 260,000 shares ($5.36 weighted average exercise price) and 152,500 shares
($4.87 weighted average exercise price), respectively, were exercisable under the 2001 and 1992 Director
Plans.

Common Stock Warrants

With regard to the warrants issued in connection with the fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2004 convertible
debentures referred to below, there will be no future charges to operations relative to these warrants.
All convertible debentures were converted during fiscal 2004 (Note 19).

All warrants outstanding are entitled to be exercised on a cash-less basis.

Fiscal 2005

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005, the Company issued 250,000 common stock warrants to a con-
sultant in partial consideration for services to be provided by such person under a consulting agreement.
The warrants are fully vested and have exercised prices between $15 and $20 per share and expire on
October 4, 2008. The warrant fair value of $667,000, as determined under the Black Scholes Model, was
charged to operations.

Fiscal 2004

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004, the Company issued 60,000 warrants to various consultants as
compensation for services provided. The warrant fair value of $77,000, as determined under the Black
Scholes Model, was charged to operations.

In September 2003, the Company issued 247,000 warrants to a group of investors in connection with a sale
of convertible debentures in the amount of $2.41 million. The Company valued these warrants using the
Black Scholes Model and was to amortize the warrant value as debt discount over the three year term of
the debentures (Note 19). In addition, 49,400 warrants were issued to a consultant as finders fees.



In September 2003, the Company sold 166,667 shares of common stock with 50,000 warrants for gross
proceeds of $500,000 (Note 20). In addition, 10,000 warrants were issued to a consultant as finders fees.

Fiscal 2003

In May 2003, the Company issued 419,279 warrants to a group of investors in connection with a sale of
convertible debentures in the amount of $2.7 million. The Company valued these warrants using the Black
Scholes Model and was to amortize the warrant value as debt discount over the three year term of the
debentures (Note 19). In addition, 36,923 warrants were issued to a consultant as finders fees.

In October 2002, the Company issued 444,000 warrants to a group of investors in connection with a sale of
$3.7 million of convertible debentures. The Company valued these warrants using the Black Scholes Model
and was to amortize the warrant value debt discount over the three year term of the debentures (Note 19).

In addition, 86,863 warrants were issued to a consultant as finders fees.

In August 2002, the Company issued 132,015 warrants in connection with a private common stock sale of

approximately $2.0 million.

A schedule of common stock warrant activity is as follows:

Number of

Shares

Outstanding at June 30,2002 . ..... ... ... .. . ... ... 2,685,818
Warrants granted greater than market price .. ......... ... ... ... 235,000
Warrants granted below marketprice .................... ... ... 1,119,080
Warrants eXercised . . .. v (3,000)
Warrants cancelled or surrendered .. ........ ... oo (68,359)
Outstanding at June 30,2003 . ... ... ... ... i 3,968,539
Warrants granted equal to market price ... ...... ... oo oL 40,000
Warrants granted greater than market price . .. ... ............. ... 20,000
Warrants granted below market price ............. .. ... ... ... .. 356,400
Warrants exercised . . . ... (2,177,625)
Warrants cancelled orsurrendered .. ... ... oo (17,226)
QOutstanding at June 30,2004 ... ... .. ... ... ... ... . 2,190,088
Warrants granted greater than market price . . ............ ... ... ... 250,000
Warrants exercised .. ... ..o (864,774)
Warrants expired .. ... .o (299,000
Outstanding at June 30,2005 .. ... ... .. ... ... 1,276,314

Weighted Average
Warrant Exercise

The following is a summary of the status of common stock warrants at June 30, 2005:

Outstanding Warrants
Weighted Average Weighted
Exercise Remaining Average
Price Range Number Contractual Life Exercise Price
$250-$ 299 403,079 22 $2.63
$300-$ 4.99 523,235 17 $333
$5.00 - $20.00 350,000 22 $5.88

Price Per Share

$ 381
3.28
2.68
3.25
8.99

$ 337
3.09
448
3.00
3.44
481

$ 323
16.80
1.77
2.99

$ 5.88

Exercisable Warrants

Number

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

403,079
523,235
350,000

$263
$3.33
$5.88
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13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is involved in the following pending and threatened legal proceedings. The Company is the
defendant in a third party complaint filed by Shore Venture Group, LLC (Shore Venture) in Federal District
Court in Pennsylvania. The third party complaint was filed against us on May 7, 2001. Shore Venture is

the defendant to an action commenced by Berwyn Capital. The third party complaint alleges a claim for
breach of contract and seeks indemnification. A trial was held in October 2002 and we are currently
awaiting the verdict of the judge. Management believes that the claim will not have a material adverse
impact on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

The Company is also the defendant in a case filed by Shore Venture Group, LLC in Federal District Court.
This complaint was filed on March 2, 2005, and an amended complaint was filed on or about April 26,
2005. The plaintiffs in this case seek additional shares of the common stock of our subsidiary, Authentidate,
Inc., the right to exchange its stock in Authentidate, Inc. for publicly traded stock and securities in the
Company, rights under one of our patent applications and damages in connection with an alleged
copyright infringement. Prior to the commencement of this case, the Company had conducted extensive
settlement negotiations with Shore Venture in an effort to resolve all claims between the parties. However,
negotiations did not result in a mutually agreeable settlement. The lawsuit requests damages, injunctive
relief, costs and attorneys’ fees. The Company intends to defend the action vigorously. Based on the facts
of which the Company is currently aware, management believes that the resolution of all of our claims
with Shore Venture will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition.
However, no assurances can be given that such belief will ultimately prove to be accurate, or that other
facts adverse to our position currently not known to management will not be uncovered, in which case
the ultimate resolution of this claim could potentially have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial condition.

In June 2005, several separate complaints purporting to be class actions were filed in federal court alleging
that the Company and some of its current and former officers and directors violated provisions of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Subsequently two separate derivative action lawsuits were filed against
the Company based on allegations substantially similar to those set forth in the purported class action
suits. The Company has not yet responded to the above complaints. As relief, the complaints seek, among
other things, declaration that the action be certified as a proper class action, unspecified compensatory
damages (including interest) and payment of costs and expenses (including fees for legal counsel and
experts). Management is unable to determine at this time whether this claim will have a material adverse
impact on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash flow.

In addition, in August 2005, we were notified of the filing of a complaint in which the plaintiff alleges that
our products and systems incorporating secure time stamping technology, including but not limited to our
Electronic Postmark system, infringes certain of the plaintiff’s patent rights. The complaint was filed in
Federal District Court. As relief, the complaint seeks, among other things, injunctive relief and damages.
The complaint has not yet been served, and the notification included a request to initiate settlement
discussions prior to service of the complaint. The Company is assessing the situation and the patents
being asserted, and has not yet responded to this notification. Management is unable to determine at this
time whether this claim will have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition, results
of operations or cash flow.

At June 30, 2005, the Company had $138,282 in an outstanding letter of credit with a financial institution.
The Company is required to maintain a cash account balance (restricted cash) equal to the outstanding
letter of credit.



At June 30, 2005, the Company had a severance accrual of $928,000 for employees that were terminated
during fiscal year 2005. These payouts will be made over the next 18 months.

In February 2004, the Company’s Trac Medical Solutions, Inc. subsidiary entered into a nine year agree-
ment with an affiliate of the American Association of Homecare (AAH) and bConnected Software, Inc.
providing for the delivery of a software-based solution for the processing of Electronic Certificates of
Medical Necessity (e-CMNs) and other electronic health care forms. The e-CMN incorporates the
Company’s CareCert solution with applications from bConnected Software. As part of the agreements
Trac Med will pay a royalty to both AAH and bConnected based on a percentage of sales of e-CMNs

to third parties.

14. CASH FLOWS - SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Cash Flows

The Company paid interest in the amounts of $8,393, $113,111 and $195,276 for the years ended June 30,
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Income taxes paid aggregated $1,108, $731 and $494 for the years ended
June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities
During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004, the Company entered into capital lease obligations of $27,500,
including interest.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003, the Company issued 130,000 shares of its common stock to
acquire all of the shares of Trac Medical. In addition, the Company entered into capital lease obligations for
property and equipment totaling $176,178, including interest (Note 10).

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has a qualified defined contribution 401(k) profit sharing plan for all eligible employees.
The Company can make contributions in percentages of compensation, or amounts as determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors. The Company contributed $98,085, $116,594 and $143,080 to the plan
during the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

A summary of other intangible assets is as follows:

June 30, 2005 June 30, 2004

Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated Useful Life
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization In Years
Patents ................... $ 357164 $ 87482 $ 366,080 $ 64,663 17
Trademarks ............... 181,081 38,884 133,086 28,932 20
Completed technologies . .. .. — — 59,400 59,400 2
Accreditation .............. — — 121,800 121,800 2
Acquired technologies .. .... 72,467 18,117 — — 2
Licenses .................. 569,087 371,919 476,484 154,292 3

Total ....... . ...l $ 1,179,799 $ 516,402 $ 1,156,850 $ 429,087

The Company recorded an impairment charge of $277,830 relative to Trac Medical long-lived intangible
assets as part of its annual impairment test under FAS 142 and 144. For further information see Note 1
under Goodwill.

The Company amortizes other intangible assets using the straight line method. Amortization expense
was approximately $268,000, $231,000 and $121,000 for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Intangible amortization expense is expected to be as follows for the next five fiscal years:

2000 $ 165,350
2007 e 134,179
2008 40,453
200 e 29,488
2000 29,488

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair Value
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Marketable Securities, Accounts Receivable, Other Current Assets,
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, accounts receivable, other
current assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Long-Term Debt and Other Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term debt, convertible debt and capital leases carrying values approximate fair value as the
Company’s current borrowing rate approximates the interest rates on such debt.



18. SEGMENT INFORMATION

FAS 131 establishes standards for reporting financial and descriptive information about an enterprise’s
operating segments in its annual financial statements and selected segment information in interim
financial reports.

The Company has three reportable segments: The Document Solutions Segment is comprised of Docstar,

a document imaging software company. Docstar sells document storage and retrieval software and related
products through a national dealer network of approximately 100 dealers. The Systems Integration
Segment is comprised of DJS Marketing Group, Inc. DJS markets computer services including network
services, internet services and software installation and integration. DJS sells a complete line of personal
computers and peripheral equipment in the Albany, New York area primarily, although DJS has several
national accounts. The Security Software Solutions Segment is comprised of Authentidate Inc.,
Authentidate AG and Trac Medical Solutions, Inc. The Security Software Solutions Segment related
businesses all provide authentication software services nationally and through AG internationally.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies.

The Company’s reportable segments are separate divisions which are managed separately. The corporate
expenses which are not managed at the segment level include all public company type expenses and
therefore are excluded from the Company’s operating segments results. Goodwill is included in corporate
assets (Note 1).
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Segment Information:

2005

Net sales from external customers ................

Intersegment revenues

Interest and otherrevenue . ......................

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization ...................
Segment profit (10ss) ...

Segment assets

2004

Net sales from external customers ................

Intersegment revenues

Interest and otherrevenue . ......................

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization ...................

Segment profit (loss)

Segment assets

2003

Net sales from external customers ................

Intersegment revenues

Interest and otherrevenue . ......................

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization .............. ... ..

Segment profit (Joss)

Segment assets

Reconciliations:

Net sales
Total net sales for

Elimination of intersegment revenues

Total consolidated net sales

Total profit or loss for reportable segments
Product development expenses
Corporate expenses and other

Elimination of intersegment profits

Loss before income taxes

Assets

Total assets for reportable segments

Corporate assets

Elimination of intersegment assets

Consolidated total assets

reportable segments ............ ...,

Security
Document Systems Software
Solutions = Integration Solutions Totals
$ 6,795,716 $ 6,985,661 $ 3,772,061 $ 17,553,438
— 84,282 8,852 93,134
1,884 — 59,011 60,895
— 7,534 7,989 15,523
328,149 30,432 1,058,369 1,416,950
777,463 (38,707) (8,984,349) (8,245,593)
5,976,831 2,636,130 2,712,510 11,325,471
$ 6,274,218 $ 11,583,397 $ 1384456 $19,242,071
— 69,321 — 69,321
4,005 905 42,797 47,707
87,866 8,756 24,519 121,141
350,941 40,429 691,108 1,082,478
847,727 264,692 (5,632,923) (4,520,504)
4,251,086 2,709,429 2,434,706 9,395,221
$ 6,781,230 $ 17,124,802 3 1,380,439 $ 25,286,471
13,770 62,268 — 76,038
566 — 181,017 181,583
107,735 18,057 100,975 226,767
414,848 50,757 1,322,019 1,787,624
796,866 146,917 (5,974,728) (5,030,945)
4,327,634 3,198,953 2,268,673 9,795,260
2005 2004 2003
...... $ 17,646,572 8§ 19311392 § 25,362,509
..... (93,134) (69,321) (76,038)
..... $ 17,553,438 $ 19,242,071 $ 25,286,471
..... $ (8245593)  § 4,520504) 8 (5,030,945)
..... (3139,381) (2,377,613) (2,534,777)
...... (7,794,052) (8,795,243) (2,258,830)
...... 5,783 6,673 (8,293)
..... $ (19173,238)  § (15,686,687)  § (9,832,845)
..... $ 11,325,471 $ 9,395,221 $ 9,795,260
..... 68,544,193 84,858,670 15,274,268
..... (161,039) (17,015) (23,688)
..... $ 79,708605 8 94,236,876 3 25,045,840




In Germany, the Company had revenues from external customers of approximately $2,183,000 for 2005,
$1,236,000 for 2004, $858,000 for 2003 and segment assets of approximately $1,487,000, $1,198,000 and
$919,000 at June 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. All other revenue is generated and assets are located
in the United States.

19. PRIVATE DEBT OFFERINGS

In October 2002, the Company sold convertible debentures with a face value of $3,700,000 to institutional
investors and warrants to purchase 444,000 shares of common stock (warrant fair value $813,000). The
debentures are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at an initial conversion price of
$2.50 per share. The debenture sale contained a beneficial conversion feature with a value of $1,190,000.
The debentures are due three years from the date of issuance and accrue interest at the rate of 7% per
annum, payable quarterly in arrears. At the option of the Company, the interest may be paid in either cash
or additional shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable for a period of four years from the date
of issuance and are initially exercisable at $2.50 per share. The conversion price of the debentures and the
exercise price of the warrants are subject to adjustment in the event the Company issues common stock or
securities convertible into common stock at a price per share of common stock less than the conversion
price or exercise price on the basis of a weighted average formula. In addition, the conversion price of the
debentures and the exercise price of the warrants are subject to adjustment at any time as the result of any
subdivision, stock split, combination of shares or recapitalization. The Company has an option, but not a
requirement, to sell another $2,470,000 of convertible debentures to the same investors provided the
Company’s common stock maintains a trading price at or above $3.00 per share for the 15 trading days
preceding an election to sell additional debentures. In September 2003, the Company exercised its option
and sold $2,470,000 of convertible debentures to the same group of investors.

In May and June 2003, the Company sold convertible debentures with a face value of $2,725,300 to
institutional investors (including a member and an affiliate of a member of the Company’s Board of
Directors) and warrants to purchase 419,279 shares of common stock (warrant fair value $774,000). The
debentures are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at an initial conversion price of
$2.60 per share. The debenture sale contained a beneficial conversion feature with a value of $821,000.

The debentures are due three years from the date of issuance and accrue interest at the rate of 7% per
annum, payable quarterly in arrears. At the option of the Company, the interest may be paid in either cash
or additional shares of common stock. The warrants are exercisable for a period of five years from the date
of issuance, 50% of the warrants are initially exercisable at $2.60 per share and the remaining 50% of the
warrants are initially exercisable at $2.86 per share. The conversion price of the debentures and the exercise
price of the warrants are subject to adjustment in the event the Company issues common stock or securi-
ties convertible into common stock at a price per share of common stock less than the conversion price or
exercise price on the basis of a weighted average formula. In addition, the conversion price of the deben-
tures and the exercise price of the warrants are subject to adjustment at any time as the result of any subdi-
vision, stock split, combination of shares or recapitalization.

As a result of the convertible debenture issuances, the Company recorded a beneficial conversion feature
and a debt discount for the fair value of the warrants aggregating $3,598,000, which will be amortized and
charged to interest expense over the three year term of the respective debt.

On September 12, 2003, we completed the sale of $2,470,000 of convertible debentures which mature in
September 2006 and bear interest at 7% payable quarterly in cash or stock at the Company’s option.

Included in the sale were warrants to purchase an aggregate of 247,000 shares, having an exercise price
of $3.00 per share and expiring in four years. The portion of the sale price allocated to the fair value of
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the warrants (approximately $800,000 debt discount) and the beneficial conversion feature value
(approximately $1,500,000) will be amortized as interest expense over the three year term of the debt.
The Company also issued five year warrants to purchase an aggregate of 49,400 shares of Company
common stock to certain consultants for services rendered in connection with these transactions, which
are exercisable at $3.00 per share. The consultants also received a cash fee equal to 6% of the gross
proceeds that the Company received.

Under the aforementioned convertible debt agreements, the Company had the right to have the debt
holders convert their debt into common stock if the market price of the Company’s common stock exceeds
150% of the conversion price for 15 consecutive days.

In October 2003, the Company exercised its right to require the convertible debenture holders to convert
the October 2002 debentures in the amount of $3,700,000 and the May / June 2003 debentures in the amount
of $2,725,300 and issued 2,528,193 common shares to complete the conversion. In December 2003, the
Company exercised its right to require the convertible debenture holders to convert the September 2003
convertible debentures in the amount of $2,470,000 and issued 823,334 common shares to complete the
conversion. The Company expensed the entire balance of unamortized beneficial conversion feature and
debt discount and charged operations an aggregate $5.1 million of non-cash interest expense.

In addition, during fiscal year 2004, the Company expensed (as interest expense) all unamortized deferred
financing fees related to the debenture conversions, in the approximate amount of $500,000.

During fiscal years 2004 and 2003, approximately $300,000 and $489,000 has been recorded as noncash
interest expense on the Company’s income statement relative to the amortization of the beneficial
conversion feature and debt discount on these convertible debentures.

20. PRIVATE EQUITY OFFERINGS

In February 2004, the Company completed a private sale of its common stock to certain accredited
investors pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”), as amended and
Regulation D, promulgated thereunder. The Company sold a total of 5,360,370 common shares at a price
of $13.75 per share and realized gross proceeds of $73.7 million. After payment of offering expenses and
broker commissions, the Company realized $69.1 million in net proceeds. The shares of common stock
issued are restricted securities and have not been registered under the Securities Act, or any state securities
law, and unless so registered, may not be offered or sold in the United States absent a registration or
applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state
securities laws.

In addition to this financing, on September 22, 2003, the Company sold 166,667 shares of common stock
and warrants to purchase 50,000 shares of Company common stock to an investor who participated in the
May 2003 financing. The shares were sold for $3.00 per share and the investor agreed to a one-year lock-up
during which he will be unable to sell or otherwise transfer the securities purchased in this sale. The 50,000
warrants issued to this investor have an exercise price of $3.00 and expire in four years. The underlying
shares of these warrants are also subject to a one-year lock-up. The Company received $470,000 of net
proceeds after expenses.

In February 2002, the Company offered the holders of its Series B common stock warrants the opportunity
to receive new warrants upon the exercise of the Series B warrants for cash. The exercise price of these
warrants was 51.375 per common stock warrant. The warrant holders would receive a new warrant



exercisable at $2.00 per common stock warrant, which was slightly above the market price of the
Company’s common stock on February 19, 2002, the date the Board approved the transaction. 1,080,000
warrants were exercised and the Company received $1,485,000 in cash; in addition 1,080,000 new warrants
were issued. The new warrants expired October 1, 2004 and have no registration rights.

In July 2002, the Company sold 660,077 shares of its common stock at $3.03 per share in a private transac-
tion. The Company received gross proceeds of approximately $2.0 million before expenses. The Company
also issued 132,015 common stock purchase warrants to the buyers, which have an exercise price of $3.26
per share and have a five-year life.

In 2001, the Company in two separate transactions closed on the sale of $5,500,000 of its securities to two
foreign institutions pursuant to Regulation S, promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
In the transactions, the Company sold 5,500 of its Series C convertible preferred stock, with a dividend rate
of 4%, payable in either cash or Company common stock to the foreign institutions convertible at $4.845
per share and five year warrants to purchase 114,000 shares of common stock exercisable at $4.845 per
share. The conversion price is not subject to resets or adjustments for changes in the market price of the
Company’s common stock. The right of conversion incorporated into the Series C preferred stock
constitutes a beneficial conversion feature, which was determined to have a value of approximately
$1,464,002. The beneficial conversion feature was amortized as a preferred stock dividend over a one-year
period commencing July 1, 2001 using the effective interest method. The Company received net proceeds
of approximately $5,200,000 from the transaction after paying commissions and expenses. The securities
sold in this offering are restricted securities under the terms of Regulation S and may not be transferred or
resold in the United States for a period of one year, except pursuant to registration under the Securities Act
or an exemption thereunder. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, there were no Series C preferred
shares converted. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004 and 2003, 3,600 Series C preferred shares and
400 Series C preferred shares were converted into 743,034 common stock shares and 82,560 common stock
shares, respectively.

During fiscal 2000, the Company closed three concurrent private offerings. In the first offering, the
Company sold 740,000 units at an aggregate offering price of $740,000, each unit consisting of two shares
of common stock and two Series B common stock purchase warrants (the “Series B warrants”). The Series
B warrants entitle the holder to purchase one share of common stock at an exercise price of $1.375 per
share during the offering period commencing on the date of issuance and terminating five years thereafter.
The Series B warrants are redeemable at any time commencing one year after issuance at the option of

the Company with not less than 30 nor more than 60 days written notice to the registered holders at a
redemption price of $.05 per warrant provided; (i} the public sale of the shares of common stock issuable
upon exercise of the Series B warrants is covered by a tentative registration statement; and (ii) during each
of the immediately preceding 20 consecutive trading days ending within 10 days of the date of the notice
of redemption, the closing bid price of the Company’s common stock is at least $3.25 per share.

As of June 30, 2005, there were no Series B warrants outstanding,.

In the second offering, the Company sold 50,000 shares of a newly created class of Series B convertible
cumulative preferred stock (the “Series B preferred stock”). The Series B preferred stock was sold at $25.00
per share for an aggregate offering price of $1,250,000. Dividends on the Series B preferred stock are
payable at the rate of 10% per annum, semi-annually in cash. Each share of Series B preferred stock is
convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock or is converted into such number of shares of

the common stock as shall equal $25.00 divided by the conversion price of $1.875 per share, subject to
adjustment under certain circumstances. Commencing three years after the closing, the conversion price
shall be the lower of $1.875 per share or the average of the closing bid and asked price of the Company’s
common stock for the 10 consecutive trading days immediately ending one trading day prior to the notice
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of the date of conversion; provided, however, that the holders are not entitled to convert more than 20%
of the Series B preferred shares held by such holder on the third anniversary of the date of issuance per
month. The Series B preferred stock is redeemable at the option of the Company at any time commencing
one year after issuance or not less than 30 nor more than 60 days written notice at a redemption price of
$25 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends provided; (i) the public sale of the shares of common
stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B preferred stock (the “conversion shares”) are covered by an
effective registration statement or are otherwise exempt from registration; and (ii) during the immediately
preceding 20 consecutive trading days ending within 10 days of the date of the notice of redemption, the
closing bid price of the Company’s common stock is not less than $3.75 per share. The Series B voting
rights are limited to any issue which would adversely affect their rights.

On October 30, 2002, the Company filed a Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Designations,
Preferences and Rights and Number of Shares of Series B preferred stock with the Secretary of State of the
State of Delaware. The amendment provides that the conversion rate applicable to the outstanding shares
of Series B preferred stock will be fixed at $1.40. Previously, the conversion rate was equal to the lower

of $1.875 and the average of the closing bid and asked prices of our common stock for the immediately
preceding ten consecutive trading days ending one day prior to the notice of conversion; provided,
however, that the conversion rate would not be below $0.875. Accordingly, the outstanding 28,000 shares
of Series B preferred stock are presently convertible into an aggregate of 500,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock. Prior to the amendment, the outstanding shares of Series B preferred stock were convert-
ible into a maximum of 800,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. In consideration of obtaining the
consent of the holder of the outstanding Series B preferred stock, the Company agreed to defer its ability
to redeem those shares for a period of two years.

As of June 30, 2005 and 2004, 22,000 Series B preferred shares have been converted, leaving 28,000 shares
outstanding, which are convertible in 500,000 common shares.

Commencing October 2004, the Series B preferred stock is redeemable at the option of the Company
without regard to the closing price of the Company’s common stock. During the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2005, no Series B preferred stock has been redeemed.

The Company received gross proceeds of approximately $2,100,000, approximately $1,900,000
after expenses.

During fiscal year 2004, the 3,600 Series C preferred shares outstanding were converted into 743,034
shares of common stock.

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company entered into certain loan and security arrangements involving Mr. John T. Botti, its former
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, principally relating to certain obligations to financial institutions
collateralized by Mr. Botti’s stock in AHC. The Company initially established these arrangements in 2001,
and agreed to certain modifications in February 2002, as described below.

In January 2001, the Company made a loan of $317,000 to Mr. Botti so as to enable him to avoid a margin
call on the shares of AHC common stock owned by him that were held in a brokerage account, as the
Board of Directors believed that failing to do so would have a material adverse impact on the market price
of its stock (the “2001 Loan”). The 2001 Loan was collateralized by a lien on all of the shares of AHC
owned by Mr. Botti, as well as shares issuable to Mr. Botti upon the exercise of stock options granted to




him. On February 14, 2002, the Company agreed to loan an additional amount of $203,159 to Mr. Botti,
which loan was also collateralized by a lien on all shares of AHC owned by Mr. Botti or issuable to him
(the “2002 Loan”). The 2001 Loan bore interest at the rate of 9% per annum. The 2002 Loan bore interest
at the rate of 6% per annum. These loans were paid in full in June 2003 as the result of Mr. Botti selling
his 100 shares of Series A preferred stock to the Company for $850,000. The Series A preferred stock

had been appraised at $1,100,000 by an independent nationally recognized appraisal and valuation firm.
Additionally, the Company paid Mr. Botti $70,000 in cash in June 2003 and monthly installments of
$15,000 to satisfy the outstanding liability related to the sale. In July 2004, the Board of Directors approved
payment in full to the Chief Executive Officer during the quarter ended September 30, 2004.

In May and June 2003, the Company sold convertible debentures to certain institutional investors. In the
transaction, the Company sold $2,725,300 of convertible debentures and warrants to purchase an aggregate
of 419,279 shares of common stock. A non-executive member of our Board of Directors participated in this
financing and purchased $250,000 aggregate principal amount of convertible debentures and received
38,462 common stock purchase warrants. Further, an entity affiliated with a non-executive member of our
Board of Directors purchased $250,000 aggregate principal amount of convertible debentures and received
38,462 common stock purchase warrants in this financing. In addition, an entity that was a beneficial
owner of greater than 5% of our common stock participated in this financing, purchasing $250,000
aggregate principal amount of convertible debentures and receiving 38,462 common stock purchase
warrants. The convertible debentures, which are payable in full in May 2006, bear interest at 7% per
annum, payable quarterly in arrears (Note 19). All of these convertible debentures were converted

during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.

22, INTEREST/OTHER INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest and other income for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 consists of:

2005 2004 2003

Interest income from financial institutions . .................... $ 1,620,438 $ 527,030 $ 76,606
Proceeds from”9/11 Fund” .. ... ... ... ... ... — — 163,465
Proceeds from insurance company related to 9/11 attack ......... — — 275,489
Grant iNCOME . . ... oot — 732,000 —
Miscellaneous iNCOMe . . ... ..ottt 57,825 45,324 56,921
Total interest and otherincome ............. ... ... .... $ 1,678,263 $ 1,304,354 $ 572481

Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 consists of:

2005 2004 2003

Interest paid to financial institutions . ............. ... ... ... .. $ 15913 $ 119,021 $ 211573

Interest paid in stock on convertible debt .................. ..., — 117,245 143,666
Writeoff of beneficial conversion feature, debt discount and

deferred financing fees ...... ... ... .. .. ... o L — 5,942,586 489,414

Interest on convertible debtincash . ........ ... ... ... ... .. ... — 53,129 27,203

Total interest eXpense . ........o.viii i $ 15913 $ 6,231,981 $ 87185
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23. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On July 11, 2005, the Company entered into a lease agreement for general office space for its Corporate
headquarters consisting of 19,695 total rentable square feet located in Berkeley Heights, New Jersey. The
lease is for a term of ten years and four months, with an anticipated commencement date of October 1,
2005. Starting on the commencement date, the Company will be entitled to occupy the premises on a rent-
free basis for four months and for an additional two months thereafter entitled to occupy a portion of the
premises on a rent-free basis. The annual rent in the first year will be $323,544, increasing to $512,070 in
year 2 and increasing at regular intervals until year 10, when the annual rent will be $561,308. The lease
also provides the Company with a right of first offer on available space on the fifth floor of the same build-
ing as well as a one-time option to renew the lease for a term of five years at the then-current market rate
for comparable buildings. The Company will also have an option to terminate the lease five years and four
months after the commencement date upon 12 months prior notice to the landlord. If the Company exer-
cises this option, it would be required to pay an early termination fee of $568,202. As part of the lease
agreement, the Company is required to post a letter of credit with the landlord securing its lease payments
in the amount of approximately $512,000. The total lease commitment will be amortized and expensed on
a straight-line basis ratably over the life of the lease.

24. QUARTERLY DATA FINANCIAL (UNAUDITED)

First Quarter  Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2005

Netsales .......................... $ 3,662,398 $ 4,761,727 $ 4,359,981 $ 4,769,332
Gross profit ... 1,702,613 2,268,598 2,059,087 2,517,427
Netloss ..o (2,906,089) (4,920,116) (2,960,055) (8,397,786)
Losspershare ...................... (.09) (.15) (.09) (.25)
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2004
Netsales .......................... $ 3,271,223 $ 4,029,068 $ 6,790,398 $ 5,151,382
Grossprofit ......................... 1,226,283 1,626,252 1,695,035 2,281,918
Netloss ............................ (1,700,019) (7,823,689) (2,565,345) (3,580,140)
Losspershare ...................... (.09) (.32) (.09) (1D




CORPORATE INFORMATION

CORPORATE OFFICE

3 Connell Drive
Berkeley Heights, NJ 07922
908.787.1700

and

2165 Technology Drive
Schenectady, NY 12308
518.346.7799

SUBSIDIARIES

DJS Marketing Group, Inc.
2165 Technology Drive
Schenectady, NY 12308

Authentidate, Inc.
3 Connell Drive
Berkeley Heights, NJ 07922

Trac Medical Solutions, Inc.
2165 Technology Drive
Schenectady, NY 12308

Docstar Division
2165 Technology Drive
Schenectady, NY 12308

Authentidate International, AG
Grobenbaumer Weg 6
40472 Dusseldorf, Germany

INVESTOR RELATIONS FIRM

KCSA Public Relations Inc.
800 Second Avenue

New York, NY 10017

212.682.6300

TRANSFER AGENT

Continental Stock Transfer and Trust Co.
17 Battery Place

New York, NY 10004

212.509.4000

LEGAL COUNSEL

Goldstein & DiGioia, LLP
45 Broadway
New York, NY 10006

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Eisner LLP
750 Third Avenue
New York, NY 10017

WEBSITE
www.AuthentidateHC.com

NASDAR SyMmBOL
ADAT

A copy of the fiscal 2005 Form 10-X filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission may be obtained by shareholders
without charge by writing to the Assistant to the President of
the Company at the corporate address, or by contacting our
Investment Relations firm, or over the Internet. For shareholder
communications regarding change of address, transfer of share
ownership or lost certificates, please contact our Transfer Agent
listed above.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM:

Surendra B. Pai President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

John J. Waters Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer and Director
Dennis H. Bunt Chief Financial Officer

Thomas M. Franceski Vice President and General Manager — Docstar and DJS

]an Wendenburg President and Chief Executive Officer of Authentidate International AG
]effrey S. Frankel Vice President and General Manager of Trac Medical

O’Connell Benj amin Senior Vice President of Products & Technology

]ayakumar Srinivasan Vice President of Corporate Development

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

FE Ross ]ohnson Chairman
Chairman of the Board of RIM Group

Charles C. Johnston
Chairman of the Board of J&C Resources LLC

J. Edward Sheridan
President of Sheridan Management Corp.

J. David Luce

Senior Vice President of Lehman Brothers

Roger O. Goldman
President of Ignite, Inc.

Ranjit C. Singh
President and CEO of TechBooks
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